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M ay 13, 2004 

JO HN D. BUTLER & COM PANY 
A PROFESSIO NAL ACCOUNTING CORPORATION 

E O. BOX 30 
BAKER, LO UISIANA 70704-0030 

(2251 77S-4982 

IND EPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Board of Comm issioners of the 
Louisiana N aval W ar M em orial Com mission 
D epar tm ent of Culture, Recreation and Tourism  
State of Louisiana 

305 South River Road 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70802 

W e have audited the accom panying basic financial statem ents of the Louisiana N aval W ar M em orial 
Com m ission as of D ecem ber 31, 2003, and for the two year s then ended, as listed in the table of 
contents. These basic financial statem ents ar e the responsibility of the Louisiana N aval W ar  M em orial 
Comm ission's m anagem ent. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic finan cial 
statem ents based on our audit. 

W e conducted our audit in accordance with audi ting stan dards generally accepted in the United States of 
Am erica and Government Auditing Standards issued by the Com ptroller G eneral of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan  and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuran ce about whether 
the basic financial statem ents are free of m aterial misstatem ent. An audit includes exam ining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the am ounts an d disclosures in the basic financial statem ents. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estim ates m ade by m anagem ent, as 
well as evaluating the overall basic finan cial statem ent presentation. W e believe that our audit provides 
a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the basic financial statem ents referred to above present fairly, in all m aterial respects, the 
financial position of th e Louisiana Naval W ar M em orial Com mission as of Decem ber 31, 2003, an d the 
results of its operations and cash flow s of its proprietary fund types for the tw o year s then ended in 
conform ity with accounting principles generally accepted generally accepted in the United States of 
Am erica. 



Board of Com m issioners of the 
Louisiana N aval W ar M em orial Com m ission 
D epartm ent of Culture, Recreation and Tourism  
State of Louisiana 

M ay 13, 2004 
Page Tw o 

The required supplemental inform ation, as listed in the table of contents, is not a required part of the 
basic financial statem ents, but is supplem entary inl~orm ation required by the G overnm ental Accounting 

Standards Board. This required supplem ental inform ation is the responsibility of the Lo uisiana N aval 

W ar Memorial Commission's management. It has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statem ents and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all m aterial respects 
when considered in relation to the basic financial statem ents taken as a whole. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated M ay 13, 2004, 
on our consideration of the Louisiana Naval W ar M em orial Comm ission's internal control over financial 
reporting and our tests of its com pliance with certain provisions of law s, regulations, contracts and 

grants. 

The accom panying supplem ental inform ation listed in the table of contents under Supplem ental 
Inform ation is pre sented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic 

financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statem ents and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all m aterial respects in relation to 
the basic financial statem ents taken as a whole. 

Com pany 
A Professional Accounting Corp oration 
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ical C enter 

O verview of tile Financial Statem ent Presenthtion 

These financial statements are comprised of three components - (1) government-wide financial 
statements, (2) fund financial statements and (3) notes to the financial statements. There is also other 
supplem entary inform ation contained in this report provided for additional inform ation. These 
statements include the Louisiana W ar Veterans Foundation as a com ponent unit. This fund is reported 
as a special revenue fund in the govern m ent-wide and fund financial statem ents. It is separately reported 
under standards for non-profit organizations in ISle supplem entary inforrn~lion section. 

Highlights of the Com m ission as a W hole 

The years 2002 and 2003 saw our highest ever attendance for O vernight Cam ping since the program 
began in 1984 with nearly 6,000 children in 2002 and over 5,600 in 2003. O ur investm ent in purchasing 
a dog tag m achine in early 2003 for the Gift Shop paid off in a big way with this new item paying for 

itself in just under one year. 

The KIDD received a huge public-relations coup in the form Of the HM S BOUNTY port visit. This tall 
ship called on Baton Rouge in December 2002 and, due to the amount of sponsorship funds raised, was 
open to the public for fourteen (14) days free of charl~e, W e were able to coordinate holiday activities 
with attractions in the im m ediate ar ea so that visitors could tour tile BO UNTY and then receive 
discounted rates for touring the KIDD , the O ld State Capitol, and the Louisiana Arts & Sciences 
M useum , or for going ice skating at the Riverside Centroplex. Over 25,000 people toured the riverfront 

during the Christm as holidays. 

W e added two new dates to our event calendar in 2002: Patriot day (Sept.l 1) and Armed Forces Day 
(3ra Saturday in M ay). Both observances have been well received by the public with good attendance for 
Arm ed Forces D ay each year, in spite of the threat of rain in 2003. The Louisiana Purchase Bicentennial 
Hot Air Balloon Festival allowed us an opportunity - as a sponsor - to spread the word about the 

M em orial and our Foundation. 

Several capital im provem ents to the facility during th.
ese two years has been replacing and updating our 

building signage, replacing a sewage line leading h'om the ship to shore, rebuilding tow (2) sewage 
pum ps aboard ship, im proving the look of our m useum  lobby, updating our audio-visual system s in the 
m useum , and the addition of a Kore an W ar m onum ent, courtesy of the Korean W ar Veterans 

A ssociation, Chapter 230. 

USS KIDO, A NATIONAL HISTORIC LANDMARK 
LOUISIANA NAVAL WAR MEMORIAL 305 S. RIVER ROA~ BATON ROUGE, LA 70802-6220 (504) 342-1942 



 

LO UISIA NA NA VA L W AR M EM O R IA L C O M M ISSIO N 
D EPA RTM EN T O F CU LTURE, R ECREA TIO N A ND TO UR ISM  

STA TE O F LO UISIA N A 
M ANAGEM ENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

D EC EM BER 31, 2003 

G overnm ent-wide Financial Statem ents. The govern m ent-wide financial statem ents, beginning on 
page 8, present financial inform ation for all activities of the Com m ission from  an econom ic resources 
m easurem ent focus using the accrual basis of accounting. These provide both short-term  and long-term  
inform ation about the Com m ission's overall financial status. They include a statement of net assets and 
statem ent of activities. 

Statement of Net Assets. This statement presents information on all of the Commission's assets and 
liabilities w ith the difference between the two reported as net assets. O ver tim e, increases or decreases 
in net assets m ay serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Com m ission is 
improving or not. 

Statement of Activities. This statement presents inform ation showing how the Commission's net assets 
changed during the m ost recent fiscal year. A ll changes in net assets are reported as soon as th e 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the tim ing of related cash flows. This 
statem ent is designed to show the Com m ission's financial reliance on general revenues. 

Both govern m ent-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Comm ission that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovemmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that 
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user 
fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the Commission include 
activities related to its Foundation. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages I 1-13 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statem ents. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to m aintain control 

over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Commission uses fund 
accounting to ensure and dem onstrate com pliance with finance-related legal requirem ents. The 
Com m ission has two categories of funds: govern m ental and proprietary funds. 

Governm ental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the sam e fu nctions 
reported as governm ental activities in the govern m ent-wide financial statem ents except that the focus 
with fund statem ents is to provide a distinct view of the Com m ission's governm ental funds only. Th ese 
statem ents report short-term fiscal accountability emphasizing the use of spendable resources during the 
year and balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. 

Because the view of govern mental funds is short-term and the view of the governm ent-wide financial 
statem ents is long-term , it is useful to com pare these two perspectives. Both the govern m ental fund 
balance sheet and the govern m ental fund statem ent of revenues, expenditures and changes in fu nd 
balances provides reconciliation to the govern m ent-w ide statem ents to assist in understanding the 
differences between the tw o viewpoints. 



 

LO UISIA N A N A VA L W A R M EM O RIA L C O M M ISSIO N 
D EPA RTM ENT O F C ULT UR E, RE C R EA TIO N A ND TO UR ISM  

STA TE O F LO U ISIA NA 
M ANAGEM ENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

DEC EM BER 31, 2003 

Budgetary com parison schedules are included for governm ental funds under required supplem entary  
inform ation -part 2 of 2. These schedules indicate the Com m ission's com pliance with its adopted and 
final revised budgets. 

Proprietary Funds. These fund types report services for which fees are charged. The Com m ission has 
one proprietary fund classified as an enterprise fund. Enterprise funds encompass the sam e fu nctions 
reported as business-type activities in the governm ent-wide statem ents. For the Com m ission, this 
includes the operation of the museum , ship and gift shop. 

Proprietary fund statem ents provide both long-term and short-term  financial inform ation consistent with 
the focus provided by the govern m ent-w ide financial statem ents but w ith m ore detail. 

The fund financial statem ents can be found on pages 15-23 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statem ents. The notes provide additional inform ation that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the govern ment-wide and fund financial statem ents. 

The index of the notes is found on page 25 w ith the actual notes beginning im m ediately afterwards 

Other information. In addition to the general-purpose financial statements and accompanying notes, 
this report also presents certain required supplementary inform ation concerning the Comm ission's 
budgetary com parisons on page 37. 

Financial A nalysis of the Com m ission 

Net assets are an  indicator of the Com m ission's finan cial position from year to year. A sum m ary of net 
assets follows on the next page. 
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LO UISIAN A NA VA L W AR M EM O R IA L C O M M ISSIO N 
D EPA RTM ENT O F C ULTUR E, R EC R EA T IO N A ND TO UR ISM  

STA TE O F LO UISIA NA 
M ANAGEM ENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

DECEM BER 31, 2003 

Budgetary H ighlights 

The Special Revenue Fund realized $117,954 additional revenues than anticipated in 2002. 
Expenditures, however, exceeded budgeted amounts by $117,379. Expenditures related to the 
endow m ent and special events are not budgeted causing this discrepancy. In 2003, revenues were 
greater than budgeted by $59,388 while expenditures were greater than budget by $46,967. 

Capital Asset and Debt Adm inistration 

Capital Assets: The Com m ission's investm ent in capital assets, net of accum ulated depreciation, at 
December 31, 2002 and 2003, was $3,170,408 and $3,072,493, respectively. Additions in 2002 
included com puters, printers and a new phone system . Additions in 2003 consisted of chairs and a dog 
tag m achine. A ll assets were properly recorded with the State of Louisiana and a detailed list is 
m aintained. 

Capital assets at year-end are sum m arized as follows 

Non-depreciable Assets: 
Land 

Depreciable Assets: 

U.S.S. Kidd (destroyer) 
M useum  
Fnm iture/equipm ent 
Total 

CA PITA L A SSETS 
Net of Accum ulated Depreciation 

Business~Type Activities 

2003 2002 2001 

$ 268,500.00 $ 268,500.00 $ 268,500.00 

1,058,736.00 
1,717,716.11 

27.541.12 

1,101,085.44 
1,779,913.98 
20 908.35 

1,143,434.88 
1,842,111.85 

15.757.09 
q 079 493 23 3.170.407.77 3.269.803.82 

Long-Term Debt: The Comm ission currently has no long-term debt with the exception of compensated 
absences of$19,762.69, $23,080.12 and $22,548.79 at December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

Econom ic Environm ent and Next Y ear's Budget 

For 2005, we expect an increase in attendance due to the Am erican Bowlers Association national 
tournam ent that will be held over the first six months of the year. A dditionally, the Hot Air Balloon 
festival will return in late July and a planned visit by HM S BOUN TY should boost attendan ce figures in 

the early fall. Construction on the Baton Rouge River Center (form erly the Centroplex) should be 
com pleted by D ecem ber 2004 as well as street realignm ent and the com pletion of Colum bus Plaza 
fronting the m useum . W ith all of this out of the way, the construction stigm a should disappear, allow ing 
visitors to access the facility unimpeded. 



 

LO U ISIAN A NA VA L W AR  M EM O R IA L C O M M ISSIO N 
D EPA RTM ENT O F C ULTU R E, RECREATIO N AN D TO U RISM  

STATE O F LO UISIA N A 

M ANAGEM ENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 
D ECEM BER 31, 2003 

An increase in attendance should also be enhanced by additional visits by the Delta Queen Steamboat 
Co. V isits in 2004 and 2005 are expected to increase from  60 to approxim ately 120. 

W ork still continues to acquire a new computer system and software to bring our collections (artifact) 
m anagem ent up-to-date, as well as our Foundation m em bership database. W ith m emberships in the 

Foundation shrinking, an effort has been underway to reorganize our Board of Trustees and jump-start 
fnndraising to provide a supplement to our normal operating income. W ith our major fundraiser, the 
Fourth of July Star-Spangled Celebration, affected by rain in 2002 and 2003, and school tour attendance 
being affected m ore often by school board restrictions, this is a necessity of the highest order. 

R equest for Inform ation 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Comm ission's finances, comply 
w ith  finance-related law s and regulations and dem onstrate the Com m ission's com m itm ent to public 
accountability. Any questions or requests for additional inform ation can be obtained by contacting 
M aury D rum m ond at 305 South River Road, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70802, 225-342-1942. 
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LO UISIANA NAVAL W A R M EM O RIAL CO M M ISSION 
DEPARTM ENT OF CULTURE, RE CREATIO N AND TO U RISM  

STATE O F LO UISIANA 
STATEM ENT O F NET ASSETS 

DECEM BER 31~2003 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investm ents 

Inventory, at cost 
Accounts receivable, net 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Special projects/programs 
Endowm ent 

Capital assets, net 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Sales tax payable 
Payroll taxes payable 
Com pensated absensces payable 

Deferred revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 

Restricted for: 

Special projects/programs 
Endowm ent 

U nrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

G overnm ental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

$ 104,672.51 $ 22,534.00 $ 
100,000.00 

24,995.75 
3,685.00 

127,206.51 
100,000.00 
24,995.75 
3,685.00 

267.73 1,485.89 1,753.62 
66,768.37 - 66,768.37 

3,072,493.23 3,072,493.23 

271,708.61 3,125,193.87 3,396,902.48 

450.00 12,782.36 
449.51 

1,347.31 
19,762.69 

1,123.80 

13,232.36 
449.51 

1,347.31 

19,762.69 
1,123.80 

450.00 35,465.67 35,915.67 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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LO UISIANA NAVAL W AR M EM O RIAL CO M M ISSIO N 
DEPARTM ENT OF CULTURE, ,RECREATIO N A ND TO URISM  

STATE O F LO UISIANA 
CO M PA R A TIVE BALAN CE SH EETS 

G O VERN M ENTA L FUN DS 
DECEM BER 31, 2003 AND 2002 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investm ents 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

TOTAL ASSETS AND  OTHER DEBITS 

LIABILITIES. EO UITY AND OTHER CREDITS 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Equity and Other Credits: 
Fund Balances: 

Reserved for special projects/programs 
Reserved for endow m ent 
Unreserved/undesignated 

Total Equity and Other Credits 

Special Revenue Fund 

$ 104,672.51 $ 162,057.48 
100,000.00 100,000.00 

67,036.10 54,749.84 

271,708.61 316,807.32 

450.00 750.00 

267.73 
67,022.14 

203,968.74 

363.48 

54,439.77 

261,254.07 

271,258.61 316,057.32 

TOTAL  LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CRE DITS 271,708.61 316,807.32 

The accom panying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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LO UISIANA NAVAL W AR M EM ORIAL CO M M ISSION 
DEPARTM ENT O F CULTURE, RECREATIO N AND TO URISM  

STA TE O F LO UISIAN A 
RECO N CILIATIO N O F TH E G O VERN M ENTAL FUND BALANCE SH EET 

TO TH E G O VERNM ENT-W IDE STATEM ENT O F NET ASSETS 
D ECEM BER 31, 2003 

Total Fund Balances - Total G overnm ental Funds 

Am ounts reported for governm ental activities in the 
Statem ent of N et A ssets are different because: 

There were no activities during the year that 
were treated differently in preparing the 
governm ent-w ide financial statem ents. 

Total Net Assets - G overn m ental Activities 

The accom pnaying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 271,258.61 

271,258.61 



 

LO UISIANA NAVAL W AR M EM O RIAL CO M M ISSIO N 
D EPA RTM ENT O F C U LTUR E, R ECREA TIO N A N D TO UR ISM  

STATE O F LO UISIANA 
CO M PARATIVE STATEM ENTS O F REVEN UES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CH ANG ES IN FUN D BALAN CES 
G O VERN M ENTAL FUND S 

YEARS ENDED DECEM BER 31, 2003 AND 2002 

M em berships 

Special projects/programs 
Endowm ent revenues 
G rants/donations 
Interest earned 

Total Revenues 

Endowm ent expenses 
O ffice expense 
Postage and printing 

Professional fees 

Spe cial Revenue Fund 

$ 34,503.00 $ 
46,424.25 

13,495.89 
6,883.00 
7,081.77 

35,333.00 
102,316.30 

1,446.25 
25,883.00 

8.975.53 

108,387.91 173,954.08 

913.52 
1,345.45 
12,936.10 
1,200.00 

10,095.89 
499.81 

8,690.00 

3,625.00 



 

LO UISIANA NAVAL W AR M EM ORIAL COM M ISSION 
DEPARTM ENT O F CULTURE, RECREATIO N AND TO URISM  

STATE O F LO U ISIAN A 
RECO NCILIATION OF TH E GOVERNM ENTAL FUN D STATEM ENT 

O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURE S AND CH ANG ES IN FUN D BALAN CES 
TO  TH E STATEM ENT O F A CTIVITIES 

Y EA RS END ED D ECEM BER 31, 2003 AN D 2002 

Net Change in Fund Balances-Total Governmental Funds $ (44,798.71) $ 6,815.38 

Am ounts reported for governm ental activities in the 

Statem ents of Activities are different because: 

There were no activities during the year that 
were treated differe ntly in preparing the 

govern m ent-w ide financial statem ents. 

Change in Net Assets - Governmental Activities (44,798.71) 6,815.38 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statem ent, 
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LOUISIANA NAVAL W AR M EM ORIAL COM M ISSION 
DEPA RTM ENT O F CULTURE, RECREATIO N AND TO URISM  

STATE O F LO UISIANA 
COM PARA TIVE BALANCE SH EETS 

PRO PRIETA RY FUN DS 
DECEM BER 31, 2003 AND 2002 

Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Inventory, at cost 
Accounts receivable, net 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Total Current A ssets 

Non-Current A ssets 
Capital A ssets: 
Land 
Furniture and fixtures 
Equipm ent 

U .S.S. Kidd 

Building 
Less: Accum ulated depreciation 

Total Non-Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable 

Sales tax payable 
Payroll tax payable 
Deferred revenue 

Total Current Liabilities 

Continued 

20 

Enterprise Fund 

22,534.00 
24,995.75 
3,685.00 
1,485.89 

54,081.95 
25,884.54 
1,207.50 
2,076.40 

52,700.64 83,250.39 

268,500.00 
22,194.49 
69,748.05 

1,905,724.79 

2,805,695.30 

(1,999,369.40 

268,500.00 
18,972.49 
60,253.05 

1,905,724.79 
2,805,695.30 
1,888,737.86 

3,072,493.23 3,170,407.77 

3,125,193.87 3,253,658.16 

12,782.36 
449.51 

1,347.31 
1.123.80 

14,567.95 
489.66 

1,431.00 
1,123.80 

15,702.98 17,612.41 



 

LO UISIANA NAVAL W AR M EM ORIAL COM M ISSION 
DEPARTM ENT OF CULTURE, RE CREATIO N AND TO URISM  

STATE O F LO UISIA N A 

COM PARATIVE BALANCE SlIEETS(Continued) 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

DECEM BER 31, 2003 AND 2002 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Com pensated absences payable 

Total Liabilities 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 

Restricted for special projects/programs 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Enterprise Fund 

2003 

$ 19,762.69 $ 23,080.12 

35,465.67 40,692.53 

3,072,493.23 3,170,407.77 
1,485.89 
15,749.08 

2,076.40 
40,481.46 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statem ent. 
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LO UISIANA NAVAL W A R M EM O RIAL CO M M ISSIO N 
DEPARTM ENT O F CULTURE, RECREATIO N AND TO URISM  

STATE O F LO U ISIAN A 
CO M PA RA TIVE STATEM ENTS O F REVEN UES, EXPENSES A N D 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
PRO PRIETARY FUNDS 

YEARS ENDED DECEM BER 31, 2003 AND 2002 

O PERATIN G REVEN UES 
Adm issions 
Sales 

Program s 
Special events 
Other operating revenues 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATI NG EXPEN SES 
Salaries and related benefits 

Purchases 
A dm inistrative 
M aintenance and supplies 

Program s 

Special events 

Depreciation 
Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Loss 

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES) 
Interest incom e 
G rant proceeds 

Leases and fees 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Loss Before Operating Transfers 

OPERATING TRANSFERS 

Transfers In 

Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets, beginning 

Net A ssets, ending 

Enterprise Fund 

481,918.58 490,907.70 

382,491.97 

86,925.63 
78,369.93 
163,452.96 
30,418.87 

9,236.33 
110,631.54 

356,962.27 
93,964.10 
87,343.34 
115,520.11 
17,844.84 

17,991.00 
109,335.05 

861,527.23 798,960.71 

(379,608.65) (308,053.01) 

75.62 
140,005.00 
19,990.60 

65.56 
142,685.00 
18.625.60 

160,071.22 161,376.16 

(219,537.43) (146,676.85) 

96,300.00 35,995.00 

(123,237.43) (110,681.85) 

3,212,965.63 3,323,647.48 

3,089,728.20 3,212,965.63 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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PRO PRIETARY FUNDS 
YEARS ENDED DECEM BER 31, 2003 AND 2002 

CASH FLOW S FROM  OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash received from  custom ers 
Cash paid to em ployees for services 
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services 

Net Cash U sed for Operating Activities 

CASH FL O W S FRO M  NON -CAPITAL FIN AN CING ACTIVITIES 

Grants received 

Leases and docking fees received 
Transers 

Enterprise Fund 

$ 479,441.08 $ 492,052.70 
(385,809.40) (356,430.94) 
(369,424.36) (331,926.50) 

(275,792.68) (196,304.74) 

140,005.00 
19,990.60 

96,300.00 

142,685.00 
18,625.60 
35,995.00 

Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing Activities 256,295.60 197,305.60 

CASH FL O W S FR OM  CAPITAL A ND RELATED FIN AN CIN G At 

CASH FLO W S FROM  INVES TING ACTIVITIES~ 

Purchase of equipm ent 
Interest received 

Net Cash Used for Investing Activities 

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 

Continued 

23 

(12,717.00) 
75.62 

(9,939.00) 
65.56 

12,641.38) (9,873.44 

(32,138.46) (8,872.58) 

56,158.35 65,030.93 

24,019.89 56,158.35 
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COM PARATIVE STATEM ENT ,S OF CASH FLOW S (Continued) 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
YEARS ENDED DECEM BER 31, 2003 AND 2002 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATI NG LOSS TO NET CASH 
USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

O perating loss 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss 
to Net Cash U sed for Operating Activities 

D epreciation 

(Increase) decrease in assets: 
Inventory 

Accounts receivable 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Payroll taxes payable 
Com pensated absences 

Net Cash Used for Ope rating Activities 

Enterprise Fund 

$ (379,608.65) $ (308,053.01) 

110,631.54 109,335.05 

888.79 

(2,477.50) 

(1,825.74) 
(83.69) 

(3,317.43) 

(4,885.83) 
1,145.00 

5,421.47 
201.25 

531.33 

275,792.68) (196,304.74 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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The Louisiana N aval W ar M em orial Com m ission is a com ponent unit of the State of Lo uisiana, 
created within the Louisiana Departm ent of Culture, Recreation and Tourism , as provided by Lo uisiana 
Revised Statute 25:1000-1003. The Com m ission is com posed of 17 m em bers, one of whom  is the 
Secretary of the Department of Culture, Recreation and Tourism or his designee, the Director of 
Veterans A ffairs and 15 m em bers appointed by the G overnor. The Com m issioners are not paid for their 
services. 

The Com m ission w as given authority to acquire, transport, berth, renovate, equip, operate, 
m aintain and exhibit the destroyer U .S.S. Kidd and other property acquired for use as a perm anent 
public naval and m arine corps m em orial and any im provem ents and exhibits located thereon and any 
additions constructed, created, leased, acquired or erected in connection herew ith. 

NOTE 1 - SUM M A RY OF SIGN IFICANT A CCO UN TIN G POLICIES 

The accounting and reporting practice of the Louisiana Naval W ar M em orial Com m ission 
conform s to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to govern ments. Such accounting 
and reporting procedures also conform to the requirem ents of Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513 and to 
the guides set forth in the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide, and to the industry audit guide Audits of 
State and Local Governmental Units. 

The following is a sum m ary of certain significant accounting policies 

Financial Reporting Entity: Section 2100 of the G ASB Codification of G overnm ental 

Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards (GASB Codification) established criteria for determ ining 
the governm ental reporting entity and com ponent units that should be included w ithin the reporting 
entity. For financial reporting purp oses, in conform ance with GASB Codification Section 2100, the 
Com m ission is considered a com ponent unit of the State of Lo uisiana because the State exercises 

oversight responsibility in that the Governor appoints the majority of the Commission members and 
public serv ice is rendered within the State's boundaries. The accom panying financial statem ents present 
the transactions of the Lo uisiana Naval W ar M em orial Com m ission and its blended component unit, the 
Louisiana Veterans' W ar M em orial Foundation, as require d by generally accepted accounting principles. 

Governm ent-wide Accounting: In accordance with Govern m ent Accounting Standards Boar ds 
Statem ent N o. 34, the Com m ission has presente~i a statem ent of net assets and statem ent of activities for 
the Com m ission as a whole. These statem ents include the prim ar y govern m ent and its com ponent units, 
if applicable, with theexception of fiduciary funds. Those funds are reported separately. Govern ment- 
wide accounting is designed to provide a m ore com pre hensive view of the governm ent's operations and 
financial position as a single econom ic entity. 

Govern m ent-wide statem ents distinguish betw een govern m ental and business-type activities. 
Govern m ental activities are those financed through taxes, intergovern m ental re venues and other non- 
exchange revenues and are usually reported in govern m ental and intern al service funds. Business 
activities are financed in w hole or in part through fees charged for goods or services to the general 
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public and are usually reported in proprietary funds 

Policies specific to the governm ent-wide statem ents are as follow s 

Elim inating Internal Activity 
Inteffund receivables and payable are elim inated in the statem ent of net assets except for the net 

residual am ounts due between govern m ental and business-type activities. These are presented as 
intern al balances. The allocation of overhead expenses from one function to another or within the sam e 
function are elim inated in the statem ent of activities. Allocated expenses are reported by the function to 
w hich they were allocated. 

Application of FASB Statements and Interpretations 
Reporting on govern m ental-type and business-type activities are based on FA SB Statem ents and 

Interpretations issued after N ovem ber 30, 1989, except w here they conflict or contradict G ASB 
pronouncem ents. 

Capitalizing Assets 
Tangible and/or intangible assets used in operations with an initial useful life that extends beyond 

one year  are capitalized. Infrastructure assets such as roads and bridges are also capitalized. Capital 
assets are recorded at their historical cost and are depreciated using the straight-line m ethod of 
depre ciation over their estim ated useful lives. They are reported net of accum ulated depre ciation on the 
statem ent of net assets. 

Using the requirem ents of G ASB Statement No. 34, the Com m ission is considered a Phase 3 
government as its total annual revenues are less than $10 million. Such governments are not required to 
report major general infrastructure assets retroactively. The Commission has opted not to retroactively 
report these types of capital assets. 

Program Revenues 

The Statement of Activities presents three categories of program revenues - (1) charges for 
services; (2) operating grants and contributions; and (3) capital grants and contributions. The 
Com m ission did not receive any capital grants/contributions and, therefore, this colum n is elim inated. 
Charges for services are those revenues arising from  char ges to custom ers w ho purchase, use  or directly 
benefit from goods and services provided by the Com m ission. Grants and contributions, whether 
operating or capital in nature, are revenues arising from receipts that are reserved for a specific use. 

Indirect Expenses 
Expenses are reported according to function except for those that m eet the definition of special or 

extraordinar y item s. D irect expenses are specifically associated w ith a service or program . Indire ct 
expe nses include general govern m ent or adm inistration that cannot be specifically traced to a service or 
program . Governm ents are not required to allocate indirect expenses to other functions, and the 
Com m ission has chosen not to do so. 
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Operating Revenues 
Proprietary funds separately report operating and non-operating revenues. Revenues from 

transactions of the Com m ission's operation of the ship and nautical center are considered operating 
revenues. A ll other revenues, w hich are reported as cash flows from  capital or non-capital financing and 
investing, are re ported as non-operating revenues. 

Reserved N et Assets 
Reserved net assets are those for which a constraint has been im posed either extern ally or by law . 

The Conum sslon recogm zed the use of reserved resources for expenditures that com ply with the specific 
restrictions. Reserved re sources are exhausted before unreserved net assets are used. 

Fund Accounting: The Com m ission uses funds to report on its financial position and the results 
of its operations~ Fund accounting is designed to dem onstrate legal com pliance and to aid financial 
m anagem ent by segregating transactions relating to certain governm ent functions or activities. 

A fund is a separate entity with a self-balancing set of accounts~ Funds of the Com m ission ar e 
classified into two categories: govern m ental and proprietar y. Each category, in turn , is divided into 
separate fund types. The fund classifications and a description of each existing fund type follow : 

Governm ental Funds: Govern m ental funds account for all or m ost of the Com m ission's general 
activities, including the collection and disbursem ent of specific or legally reserved m onies, the 
acquisition or construction of general fixed assets, and the servicing of generally long-term 
obligations. Governm ental funds include: 

1. Special Revenue Funds - account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally 
reserv ed to expenditures for specific purposes. 

Proprietar y Funds: Proprietary funds account for activities sim ilar to those found in the private 
sector, where the determ ination of net incom e is necessary or useful to sound financial 
adm inistration. Proprietary funds differ from  govern m ental funds in that their focus is on incom e 
m easurem ent, which together with the m aintenance of equity, is an im portant financial indicator. 
Proprietary funds include: 

1. Enterprise Funds - account for operations (a) where the intent of the governing body is that the 
costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on 
a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or (b) where the 
governing body has decided that periodic determ ination of revenues earned, expe nses incurred, 

and/or net income is appropriate for capital 01aintenance, public policy, management control, 
accountability or other purp oses. 
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Basis of Accounting/M easurem ent Focus: The accounting and financial reporting treatm ent 
applied to a fund is determ ined by the type of financial statem ent presentation. 

The govern m ent-wide statem ents are reported using an econom ic resources m easurem ent focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting. W ith this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated 
with the operation of governm ental and business-type activities are included in the statement of net 
sssets. Revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized at the tim e the liabilities are 
incurred in the statem ent of activities. In these statem ents, capital assets are reported and depreciated in 
each fund. 

This same m easure ment focus and basis of accounting is used by proprietary funds in the fund 
statem ents. H owever, all govern m ental funds ar e reported using a current financial resources 
m easurem ent focus and the m odified accru al basis of accounting. W ith this m easurem ent focus, only 
current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. O pe rating statem ents 
pre sent increases and decreases in net current assets. Expenditure s for capital assets are reported as 
current expenses, and such assets are not depreciated. 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting: The Com m ission adopts an annual budget for all of its 
funds. It is prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting utilized by that fund. Any revisions that 
alter the total expenditures m ust be approved by the Board. Budgeted am ounts shown are as originally 
adopted and as am ended by the Board. Budget am endm ents are passed on an as-needed basis. A 
balanced budget is required. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash includes amounts in demand deposits, interest bearing 
dem and deposits and certificates of deposits. Cash equivalents include am ounts in tim e deposits and 
those investm ents with original m aturities of 90 days or less. U nder State law , the Com m ission m ay 
deposit funds in dem and deposits, interest-bearing dem and deposits, m oney m ar ket accounts or tim e 
deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having their principal 

offices in Louisiana. 

Investm ents: Investm ents are lim ited by La. R.S. 33:2955. If the original m aturities of 
investments exceed 90 days, they ar e classified as investm ents. Otherwise, the investm ents are classified 
as cash and cash equivalents. In accordance with G ASB Statem ent N o. 31, investm ents ar e recorded at 
fair value w ith the corresponding increase or decrease reported in investm ent earnings. All investm ents 
of the Com m ission are certificates of deposit held at Edw ard Jones &  Co., and the fair value is 
determ ined by the face value of the certificate. 
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Use of Estim ates: The preparation of financial statements in conform ity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires m anagem ent to m ake estim ates and assum ptions that affect certain 
reported am ounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from  those estim ates. 

Restricted Assets: Certain proceeds of enterprise funds are classified as restricted assets on the 
balance sheet because their use is lim ited. 

Capital Assets: The Com m ission's assets are recorded at historical cost. Depreciation is recorded 
using the straight-line m ethod over the useful lives of the assets as follow s: 

Buildings 
Equipm ents 
O ffice furn iture 

40 years 
4-10 years 
5-7 years 

Vehicles 
Infrastru cture 

7-10 years 
40-50 years 

In June 1999, the Governm ental Accounting Standards Board issued Statem ent N o. 34 which 
requires the inclusion of infrastructure assets used in governmental activities in the basic financial 
statem ents retroactively reported back to 1982. An exception exists for local govern m ents with annual 
revenues of less than $10 million. As a result of this exception, the Commission has elected to not repo rt 
its govern m ental infrastructure retroactively. From  this point forward, the Com m ission will use the 
basic approach to infrastructure reporting for its govern m ental activities when applicable. 

Com pensated Absences: At December 31,2003, em ployees of the Comm ission had accumulated 
and vested $19,762.69 of emptoyee leave benefits, which was computed in accordance with GASB 
Codification Section C60.150. 

Long-Term  O bligations: In the govern m ent-wide financial statem ents, debt principal paym ents 
of both govern m ent and business-type activities are reported as decreases in the balance of the liability 
on the statem ent of net assets. In the fund financial statem ents, however, debt principal paym ents of 
governm ental funds are recognized as expenditlJres when paid. 

Net Assets/Fund Balances: In the statements of net assets, the difference between a govern ment's 
assets and liabilities is recorded as net assets. The three com ponents of net assets is as follows: 

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 
This category records capital assets net of accum ulated depreciation and reduced by any 

outstanding balances of bonds, m ortgages, notes or other borrowings attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or im provem ent of capital assets. 

Restricted Net Assets 
Net Assets that are reserved by extern al sources such as banks or by law are reported separately as  

restricted net assets. W hen assets are required to be retained in perp etuity, these non-expendable net 
assets are recorded separately from  expendable net assets. These are com ponents of restricted net assets. 
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Unrestricted Net Assets 
This category represents net assets not appropriable for expenditures or legally segregated for a 

specific future use. 

In the Balance Sheet of govern mental funds, fund balances are segregated as follows 

Reserved i 
These resources are segregated because their use is earm arked for a specific use 

Unreserved 
This category represents that portion of equity not appropriable for expenditures or legally 

segregated for a specific future use. 

Interfund Transactions: All interfund transactions except quasi-extern al transactions, are 
reported as operating transfers. These ar e elim inated in the governm ent-w ide statem ents. 

N OTE 2 - CASH AND  CASH EOUIVALENTS 

The following is a summary of cash and cash equivalents (book balances) at December 31, 2003 

D em and deposits 
Interest-bearing dem and deposits 
M oney m ar ket savings 
Petty cash 

Total 

Spe cial 
Revenue 
Fund 

$ .00 
2,542.20 

169,166.41 
.00 

Enterprise 
Fund 

$ 20,734.00 
1,485.89 

.00 
1.800.00 

71.708.61 24.019.89 

These deposits ar e stated at cost, which approxim ates m arket. U nder State law , they m ust be 
secure d by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The 
m arket value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance m ust at all tim es equal the 
am ount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the nam e of the pledging fiscal 
agent bank in a holding, or custodial bank that is m utually acceptable to both parties. 

At December 31, 2003, the Commission had $32,571 in deposits (collected bank balances), which 
are fully insured by federal deposit insurance. At December 31, 2003, the Foundation (Special Revenue 
Fund) had $104,665 (collected bank balances).which are secured from risk by $200,000 of federal 
deposit insurance. 

Reserved cash of the Foundation (Spe cial Revenue Fund) in the amount of $66,738.37 is held at 
the Baton Rouge A re a Foundation. These funds have been placed in a diversified investm ent pool which 
realized a return in 2003, of approxim ately 25% . They are considered cash equivalents. 
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NOTE 3 - IN VESTM ENTS 

Investm ents are categorized into these three categories of credit risk 

1. Insured or registered, or securities held by the entity's or its agent in the entity's nam e; 
2. U ninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty's trust departm ent or 
agent in the entity's nam e; or 

3. Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust 
departm ent or agent but not in the entity's nam e. 

A ll investm ents of the Foundation fall within category 1. The balances at D ecem ber 31, 2003, are 
as follow s: 

Certificate of Deposit 

Fair 
V alue 

Carrying 
A m ount 

Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollaterized under the provisions of GASB 
Statement No. 3, La. R,S. 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement of the custodial bank to advertise and 
sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposit 
funds upon dem and. 

The following is a sum m ary of receivables at Decem ber 31, 2003 

A ccounts: 
Adm issions 
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Enterprise 
Fund 
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL A SSETS 

Capital asset activity of the enterprise fund (business-type activities) for the year ended December 
31, 2003, is as follow s: 

Balance Balance 
1/1/03 Additions Retirem ent 12/31/03 

Capital Assets, not being depreciated 
Land $ 268,500.00 $ .00 $ .00 $ 268,500.00 

Capital A ssets, being depreciated 

U.S.S. Kidd (destroyer) 
Less: accum ulated depreciation 

Total Ship 

M useum  
Le ss: accum ulated depreciation 

Total Buildings 

Furn iture and equipm ent 
Le ss: accum ulated depreciation 

Total Furn iture/Equipm ent 

Total Capital A ssets, be ing depreciated 

Total Capital Assets, net 

1,905,724.79 .00 
(804.639.35"~ (42.349.44 

00 1,905,724.79 
00 (846.988.79 

A ll em ployees of the Com m ission are m em bers of the Federal Social Security System  in which 
they contribute 7.65%  of their gross salaries and the Com m ission m atches their contribution. 
Contributions to this plan were $21,954.46 in 2002 and $23,059.80 in 2003. 

Full-tim e em ployees are also eligible to participate in the Louisiana D eferred Com pensation 
Program  adopted under the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457. Through this plan, 
em ployees voluntarily contribute a percentage of their salary while the Com m ission m atches it up to the 
first 5% of gross salaries. The benefit cost the Commission $8,902.16 in 2002 and $9,839.09 in 2003. 
Disclosures relating to this state-wide plan are available in the financial statem ents of the State of 
Lo uisiana. 
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The Com m ission's only long-term obligations consist of com pensated absences in the am ount of 
$23,080.12 and $19,762.69 at December 31, 2002 and 2003, respectively. 

N OTE 8 - A CCO UNTS AND O THER PA YA B 

The following is a sum m ary of payables at D ecem ber 31, 2003 

Class of Payables 
Accounts 
Sales tax 
W ithholding and payroll taxes 
Com pensated absences 

Total 

Enterprise 
Fund 

$ 12,782.36 
449.51 

1,347.31 
19.762.69 

450.00 34.341.87 

For business-type activities, the January of 2004 lease payment of $1,123.80 from Jazz Enterprises 
is recorded as deferred revenue as it w as received in the latter part of 2003. 

NOTE  10 - PROPRIETARY FUND SEGM ENT IN FORM ATION 

Segm ent inform ation for the year ended D ecem ber 31, 2003, is as follows 
2003 

Current assets 
Capital assets, net 

Total A ssets 

Current liabilities 
Long-term  liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Invested in capital assets, net 
of related debt 
Restricted 
U nrestricted 

Total Net A ssets 
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$ 52,700.64 
3,072,493.23 

$ 83,250.39 

3,125,193.87 3,253,658.16 

15,702.98 
19,762.69 

17,612.41 
23,080.12 

35,465.67 40,692.53 

3,072,493.23 
1,485.89 
15,749.08 

3,170,407.77 
2,076.40 
40,481.46 
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Operating Revenue 
Operating Expenses 
Depreciation 

O perating Loss 

Non-operating Revenues, and Transfers 

2003 

$ 481,918.58 
(750,895.69) 
(110,631.54) 

2002 

$ 490,907.70 
(689,625.66) 
(109,335.05) 

(379,608.65) (308,053.01) 

256,37t.22 

Change in Net Assets (123.237.43 ) 

N O TE 11 - RELATED PARTY TRAN SACTION S 

There are no related party transactions that require disclosure 

N OTE 12 - LITIGATION  

There is no litigation that would require ~sclosure in this report. 

197,371.16 

(110.681.85) 

NOTE 13 - STATEM EN T OF CA SH FLO W S FOR PROPRIETARY FUND S 

For purposes of the statem ent of cash flows of proprietary fund types, all highly liquid investments, 
including restricted assets, with a m aturity of three m onths or less when purchased are considered to be 
cash equivalents. The cash and cash equivalents as stated on the statem ent of cash flows at Decem ber 
31, 2003 is as follows: 

U nrestricted 
Restricted 

Total 

N O TE 14 - SUBSEOU EN T EVEN TS 

Enterprise Fund 

$ 22,534.00 
1,485.89 

There were no events between the close of the year through issuance of this report that would 
m aterially im pact these financial statem ents. 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUN DS 
YEAR EN D ED D ECEM BER 31, 2003 

M emberships 

Special projects/programs 
Endowment revenues 
G rants/donations 
Interest earned 

Total Revenues 

Endowment expe nses 
Office expense 

Postage and printing 
Professional fees 

Special projects/programs 

Total Expenditures 

Budgeted 

Original Final Actual 

$40,000.00 $ 40,000.00 $ 

9,000.00 9,000.00 

V ariance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

34,503.00 $ 
46,424.25 

13,495.89 
6,883.00 

7,081.77 

(5,497.00) 
46,424.25 
13,495.89 
6,883.00 

(1,918.23) 

49,000.00 49,000.00 108,387.91 59,387.91 

120.00 

8,000.00 

1,800.00 

120.00 
8,000.00 
1,800.00 

913.52 
1,345.45 
12,936.10 
1,200.00 

40,491.55 

(913.52) 
(1,225.45) 
(4,936.10) 
600.00 

40,491.55) 

9,920.00 9,920.00 56,886.62 (46,966.62 

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 39,080.00 39,080.00 51,501.29 12,421.29 

G SO 

O perating transfers out 

Excess of Revenues and O ther Operatin 

Sources over Expenditures and O ther 

O perating Uses 

Fund Balances, beginning 

Fund Balances, ending 

9,000.00) (60,900.00) (96,300.00) (35,400.00 

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of this statement. 
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LO UISIANA NAVA L W AR M EM O RIAL CO M M ISSIO N 
DEPARTM ENT OF CULTURE, RECREATIO N AN D TO URISM  

STA TE O F LO UISIA NA 
BUD G ETA R Y CO M PA RISO N SC H ED ULE 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
YEAR EN DED DECEM BER 31, 2002 

M em berships 

Special projects/programs 
Endowm ent revenues 

Grants/donations 
Interest earned 

Total Revenues 

Endowment expenses 
Office expense 

Postage and printing 

Professional fees 

Budgeted 

$45,000.00 $ 45,000.00 $ 

11,000.00 11,000.00 

V ariance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

35,333.00 $ 
102,316.30 

1,446.25 
25,883.00 

8,975.53 

(9,667.00) 
102,316.30 
1,446.25 

25,883.00 

(2,024.47) 

56,000.00 56,000.00 173,954.08 117,954.08 

140.00 

10,000.00 

3,625.00 

140.00 

10,000.00 

3,625.00 

10,095.89 
499.81 

8,690.00 
3,625.00 

(10,095.89) 
(359.81) 
1,310:00 

Spe cial projects/programs 108,233.00 (108,233.00 

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of this statem ent. 
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)OHN 13. BUTLER & CO M PANY 
A PRO FESsiONAL ACCOUNTING CORPORATION 

R O . BOX 30 
BAKER, LO UISIANA 70704-0030 

(225) 775-4982 

REPORT ON COM PLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED O N AN AUD IT OF 
FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS PERFO RM ED IN ACCO RDANCE 

W ITH  GO VERNM EN T A UDITING STANDARD S 

M ay 13, 2004 

Board of Com m assioners of the 
Louisiana N aval W ar M em orial Com m ission 
D epar tm ent of Culture, Recreation and Tourism  
State of Louisiana 
305 South  River Road 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70802 

W e have audited the financial statem ents of the Louisiana N aval W ar M em orial Com m ission, as of 
and for the tw o years ended D ecem ber 31, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated M ay 13, 
2004. W e conducted our audit in accordance with audi ting stan dar ds generally accepted in the 
United States of Am erica and the standards applicable to financial audi ts contained in Governm ent 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Com ptroller General of the U nited States. 

Com pliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Louisiana Naval W ar M em orial 
Com m ission's financiai statem ents are free of m aterial misstatem ent, we perform ed tests of its 
com pliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncom pliance with 
which could have a direct an d m aterial effect on the determination of financial statem ent am ounts. 

However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an  opinion. The results of our  tests disclosed no 
instances of noncom plian ce that are required to be reported under Govern ment Auditing Standards. 

41 



Board of Com m issioners of the 
Louisiana N aval W ar M em orial Com m ission 
M ay 13, 2004 
Page two 

In planning and perform ing our audit, we considered the Lo uisiana N aval W ar M em orial Com mission's 
internal control over financial reporting in order to.determ ine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statem ents and not to provide assurance on the intern al control 
over financial reporting. O ur consideration of the intern al control over financial re porting would not 
necessarily disclose all m atters in the intern al control over financial reporting that m ight be m aterial 
weaknesses. A m aterial weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or m ore of the 
internal control com ponents does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that m isstatem ents in 
am ounts that would be m aterial in relation to the financial statements being audited m ay occur and not 
be detected within a tim ely period by em ployees in the norm al course of perform ing their assigned 
functions. W e noted no m atters involving the intern al control over financial reporting and its operation 
that we consider to be m aterial weaknesses. H ow ever, we noted other m atters involving the intern al 
control over financial reporting that we have reported to m anagem ent of the Louisiana N aval W ar 
M em orial Com m ission in a separate letter dated M ay 13, 2004. 

This report is intended solely for the inform ation and use of m anagem ent and Legislative Auditor and 
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. Under Lo uisiana Revised Statute ~24:513, the Legislative 
A uditor distributes this report as a public docum ent. 

Sinc~  ~b . 
John D . Butler & Com pany 
A Professional Accounting Corporation 
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LO U ISIAN A NA VAL W A R M EM O R IA L C O M M ISSIO N 
DEPA RTM ENT O F CU LTU RE, RECRE ATIO N A N D TO U R ISM  

STATE O F LO UISIA NA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEA R ENDED .D ECEM BER 31, 2003 

W e have audited the financial statem ents of the Louisiana N aval W ar M em orial Com m ission as of and 
for the year ended D ecem ber 31, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated M ay 13, 2004. W e 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
Am erica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Com ptroller G eneral of the United States. O ur audit of the financial statem ents as of 
D ecem ber 31, 2003, resulted in an unqualified opinion. 

Section I Sum m ary of Auditor's Reports 

1. Report on Internal Control and Com pliance M aterial to the Financial Statem ents 

Intern al Control 

Com pliance 

2. Federal A w ards 

N/A 

M aterial W eakness 
Reportable Condition 

Com pliance M aterial to F/S 

Section II Financial Statem ent Findings 

N/A 

Section III Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

N/A 
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LO UISIANA NAVAL W AR M E M O RIAL CO M M ISSIO N 
DEPARTM ENT O F CU LTURE, REC REATIO N AN D TO U R ISM  

STATE O F LO UISIAN A 
SUM M ARY SCH EDULE O F PRIO R YEAR FIND ING S 

YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 2003 

Section I Internal Control and Com pliance M aterial to the Financial Statem ents 

N/A 

Section II Internal Control and Com pliance M aterial to Federal Awards 

N/A 

Section llI M anagem ent Letter 

N/A 



 

LOUISIAN A NAVAL W AR M E M O RIAL CO M M ISSIO N 
DEPARTM ENT O F CULTURE, RECREATIO N AND TO URISM  

STAT E O F LO U ISIAN A 
M ANA G EM ENT'S CO RRECTIVE ACTIO N PLAN 

YEA R END ED D ECEM BER 31, 2003 

Section I Internal Control and Com pliance M aterial to the Financial Statem ents 

N/A 

Section II Internal Control and Com pliance M aterial to Federal A wards 

N/A 

Section III M anagem ent Letter 

M 03-01 Uninsured Cash Deposits Responsible Party: M aury Drumm ond 
Recomm endation: To periodically review bank Completion D ate: Im m ediately 
balances and take appropriate action when funds Action: The Executive D irector will review bank 
becom e uninsured balances on a basis at least quarterly 
M 03-02 Travel D ocum entation Responsible Party: M aury D rum m ond 
Recom m endation: To create standard Completion D ate: Im m ediately 
reim bursem ent request form  to include, at a Action." A policy will be im plemented that 
m inim um , dates, place and purpose of travel; To includes a standard form  to address all issues 
attach all original invoices and item ize them  on the raised 
form ; To include all persons eating when the 
reim bursem ent includes meals 
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LO UISIANA NAVAL W AR M EM O RIAL CO M M ISSIO N 
DEPARTM EN T O F CULTURE, RECREATIO N AND TO URISM  

STATE OF LO UISIANA 
SUPPLEM ENTAL IN FO RM ATIO N SCH EDU LES 

DECEM BER 31, 2003 

L 

W hen a com ponent unit is blended, it becom es a Special Revenue Fund of the prim ary unit. Such is 
the presentation of the Louisiana Veterans' W ar M em orial Foundation in the accom panying 
financial statem ents prepared under generally accepted governm ental accounting principles. The 
following statem ents of the Foundation have been prepared using principles set forth in FASB 
Statem ent No. 117 applicable to not-for-profit organizations. The am ounts recorded have been 

subjected to the same auditing procedures as those recorded in the accompanying financial 
statem ents. 



LO U ISIA N A V ETERA NS' W AR M EM O RIA L FO UN D ATIO N 
CO M PARA TIVE STATEM ENTS O F FINANCIAL PO SITIO N 

D EC EM EBER 31, 2003 A N D 2002 

A SSETS 

CURRENT A SSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investm ents 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Special projects/programs 
Endow m ent 

Total Current Assets/Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AN D NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 

Total Current Liabilities/Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 

Tem porarily reserved 

Perm anently reserved 

U nreserved 

Total Net Assets 

TOTAL LIABIL ITIES AND NET ASSETS 

See Auditors' Report. 
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$ 104,672.51 
100,000.00 

267.73 

66,768.37 

$ 162,057.48 
100,000.00 

363.48 
54,386.36 

271,708.61 316,807,32 

450.00 750.00 

450.00 750.00 

267.73 

67,022.14 
203,968.74 

363.48 

58,439.77 

261,254.07 

271,258.61 320,057.32 

271,708.61 320,807.32 



LO UISIAN A VETERA NS' W A R M EM O R IA L FO U N DA TIO N 

COM PARA TIVE STATEM ENTS OF ACTIVITIES 
YEARS EN D ED DECEM BER 31, 2003 A ND 2002 

SUPPORT 

M em berships 
Interest incom e 

Total U nreserved Support 

Net Assets Released from Restriction: 
Restrictions satisfied by paym ents 
Total Unrestricted Support and Reclassifications 

EXPEN SES 
Program  Services 
Activities 

Com m unications 

Supporting Services 

M anagem ent and general 
Fund raising 

Total expenses 

2003 

$ 34,503.00 $ 35,333.00 
7,081.77 8,975.53 
41,584.77 44,308.53 

53,403.00 128,293.00 
94,987.77 172,601.53 

103,484.55 
12,936.10 

1,378.45 
34,474.00 

103,844.00 
8,690.00 

4,124.81 

40,384.00 

152,273.10 157,042.81 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS (57,285.33) 15,558.72 

Support from  the 4th of July Celebration 

Support from  Focus on Flag program 
Support from donations/grants 
Support from  HM S Bounty 

Support from  reunions 
Net assets released from  restrictions: 
Restrictions satisfied by paym ents 

41,424.00 
0.25 

6,883.00 
5,000.00 

54,614.00 
2.30 

25,883.00 
40,200.00 

7,500.00 

53,403.00) (128,293.00 

DECRE ASE IN TEMPORARILY RE STRICTED NET ASSETS (95.75) (93.70) 

Continued 
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LO UISIANA VETERANS' W AR M EM O RIAL FO UNDATIO N 

COM PARA TIVE STATEM ENTS OF ACTIVITIES (Continued) 
YEA RS EN D ED DECEM BER 31, 2003 A N D 2002 

Endowm ent receipts 
Interest earned, net of charges 

INCREASE (DECRE ASE) IN PERM ANENTLY 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

CH AN GE IN  NE T ASSETS 

NE T ASSETS AT BEGINN IN G O F YEAR 

NE T A SSETS AT END OF YE AR 

See Auditors' Report. 
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2003 

$ 200.00 $ 
12,382.37 (8,649.64 

12,582.37 (8,649.64 

(44,798.71) 6,815.38 

316,057.32 309,241.94 

271,258.61 316,057.32 



 

LO U ISIA N A V ETERA NS' W AR M EM O RIAL FO UND A TIO N 
COM PARATIVE STATEM ENTS OF FUN CTIONAL EXPENSES 

D ECEM BER 31, 2003 AN D 2002 

D ECEM B ER 31. 2003 

July 4th celebration 
Focus on flag 
HM S Bounty 

Printing and postage 
A udit and accounting 

Office expense 
M useum/Ship 

Total Expenses 

July 4th celebration 

Focus on flag 
Reunions 

H M S Bounty 

Printing and postage 

Audit and accounting 

Office expense 
M useum/Ship 

Total Expenses 

M gt. A nd 
Activities Communications General 

$ - . $ $ 
96.00 

7,088.55 

96,300.00 

12,936.10 

Fund 

Raising 

$ 33,307.00 

1,200.00 
178.45 1,167.00 

103,484.55 12,936.10 1,378.45 34,474.00 

$ $ 
96.00 

7,500.00 
60,253.00 

35,995.00 

$ - $ 40,384.00 

8,690.00 

3,625.00 
499.81 

103,844,00 8,690.00 4,124.81 40,384.00 

See Auditors' Report. 
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LO UISIANA VETERANS' W AR M EM O RIAL FO UN DATION 
C O M PA RATIVE STA TEM EN TS O F CASH  FLO W S 
YEA RS ENDED DECEM BER 31, 2003 AND 2002 

CASH FLOW S FROM  OPERATING ACTIV ITIES 

Cash received from  custom ers 

Cash received from grants/donations 

Cash received from fund-raising 

Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash paid for memorial 
Interest income 

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 

CASH FLOW S FROM  NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOW S FR OM  CAPITAL AND 

RELATED FINANCING ACTIV ITIES 

CASH FLOW S FROM  INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cas h Equivalents, Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 

41,424.00 

52,085.62 

6,883.00 

(56,273.10) 
(96,300.00) 
7,081.77 

$ 52,514.00 
83,035.30 
25,883.00 

(134,092.45) 
(31,300.00) 
8,975.53 

(45,098.71) 5,015.38 

(45,098.71) 5,015.38 

216,807.32 211,791.74 

171,708.61 216,807.12 

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACT IVITIES 

Change in net assets 

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets 
to Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities: 
(Increase) decrease in assets: 
Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
D eferred revenue 

Net Cash Provided  by (Used for) Operating Activities 

See Auditor's Report. 
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(44,798.7 l) 6,815.38 

(300.00) 300.00 
(2,100.00) 

(45,098.71) 5,015.38 



M ay 13,2004 

JO HN D. BUTLER & CO M PANY 
A PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING CORPO RATION 

P, a  BOX 30 
BAKER, LOUISIANA 70704.-0030 

(225) 775-4982 

M A NAGEM ENT LETTER 

M aury D rum m ond, D irector 
and the Board of Comm issioners/Trustees 

Louisiana N aval W ar M em orial Com m ission and 
Louisiana Veterans M em orial Foundation 

305 South River Road 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70802 

W e have audited the general-purpose financial statements of the Louisiana Naval W ar M em orial 
Com m ission and Lo uisiana Veterans M em orial Foundation as of and for the two year s ended D ecember 
31, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated M ay 13, 2004. W e conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standar ds generally accepted in the United States of Am erica an d the stan dards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Com ptroller 
General of the United States. 

A s part of our exam ination, we have issued our report on the financial statem ents, dated M ay 13, 2004 
and our report on internal control and com pliance with law s, regulations an d contracts, dated M ay 13 
2004. 

During the course of our audit, we noted th e following conditions that are or m ay becom e potential 
problem s in the ar eas of internal control over financial reporting or com pliance with law s and 
regulations applicable to the City. 

M 03-01 Uninsured Cash D eposits 

POrNTS 

Cash deposits of the Foundation in Union Planters were uninsured in the amount of $62,846 at 
December 31, 2002, and $4,665 at December 31, 2003. 

An effective internal control system should be in place that safeguards the assets of the organization 

W e recom m end that procedures be established to periodically review bank balances. Should cash 
deposits be uninsur ed, a plan  should be included in this procedure to m ove uninsured funds to an oth er 
institution unless the uninsured am ounts ar e due to a short-term  situation. 
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Louisiana N aval W ar M em orial Com m ission 
and Louisiana Veterans M em orial Foundation 

M ay 13, 2004 
Page Two 

M 03-02 Travel D ocum entation 

There is no standard or consistent m ethod for requesting travel reim bursements. Certain reim bursed 
m eals lacked evidence of business purpose, i.e. nam es of guests and purp ose of m eeting. A dditionally, 

the majority of travel reimbursements did not include evidence of the purpose of the travel such as a 
conference registration form or m eeting agenda. 

All disbursem ents should include appropriate supporting documentation that allows for determ ination of 
its legitim ate business purpose. 

W e suggest that a standard re im bursem ent form be created that w ould include the dates, place and 
purp ose of travel. A registration form  or confirm ation should be attached to evidence the purpose, place 
and date. Original receipts need to be attached for each item of the reim bursem ent request. M eals 
involving som eone other than the Com m ission em ployee should include the nam es of the guests and the 
purpose of the m eeting. Because credit card receipts fade, these could be copied with the original 
attached. 

W e offer these recom m endations as a m eans of strengthening the intern al control structure of the 
Com m ission and Foundation and urge m anagem ent to address the foregoing issues as an im provement to 
operations and the adm inistration of public program s. W e are available to further explain the 
suggestions or help implement the recom m endations. 

A Professional Accounting Corporation 
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LO UISIANA NAVAL W A R M EM O RIAL CO M M ISSIO N 
DEPARTM ENT O F CULTURE, RECREATIO N AND TO URISM  

STATE O F LO UISIANA 
SUPPLEM ENTAL INFO RM ATIO N SCH EDULES 

D ECEM BER 31, 2003 

IVE R' 

As a com ponent unit of the State of Louisiana, the financial statem ents of the Lo uisiana N aval 
W ar M em orial Com m ission are included in Louisiana's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
Following are the statem ents being subm itted to the D ivision of Adm inistration. For purposes of 
these statem ents, the Com m ission and Foundation wilt be reported as one entity. The am ounts 

recorded have been subjected to the same auditing procedures as those recorded in the 
accom panying financial statem ents. 
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TRANSM IT FAL LETTER 
AFFiDAViT 

Statem ents 

Balance Sheet 

Louisiana Naval War Memorial Conm*isslon 

(Agency Nam e) 
STATE O F LO UISIANA 

Annual Financial Statem ents 

December 31, 2003 

C O N T E N T S 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

Statement of Activities (includes Instructions) 
Statem ent of Cash Flows 

Notes to the Financial Statem ents 

Schedules 
1 
2 
3 
4 
5 

t5 

Sum m ary of Significant Accounting Policies 
Budgetary Accounting 
Deposits with Financial Institutions and Investments (Instructions in back) 
Capital Assets 
Inventories 
Restricted Assets 
Leave 
Retirem ent System  
Post Retirem ent Health Care  and Life Insurance Benefits 
Leases 
Long-Term  Liabilities 
Litigation 
Related Party Transactions 
Accounting Changes 
In-Kind Contributions 
Defeased Issues 
Coopera tive Endeavors 
Government-Mandated Nonexchange Transactions (Grants) 
Violations of Finance-Related Legal or Contractual Provisions 
Short-Term  Debt 
Disaggregation of Receivable Balances 
Disaggregation of Payable Balances 
Subsequent Events 
Segm ent Inform ation 
Due to/Due from and Tra nsfers 
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 
Prior-Year Restatem ent of Net Assets 

A 

B 

C 

D 

Schedule of Per Diem  Paid Board M em bers 
Schedule of State Funding 
Schedules of Long-Term  Debt 
Schedules of Long-Term  Debt Am ortization 
Schedule of Current Year Revenue and Expenses - Budgetary Com parison of Current 
Appropdation - Non G AAP Basis 
Schedule of Com parison Figures 



 

STATE O F LO UISIANA 
Annual Financial Statem ents 

Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2003 

Louisiana Naval War Memorial CommlR~Inn 

(Agency Name) 

Division of Adm inistration 
O ffice of Statew lde Reporting 
and Accounting Policy 
P. O . Box 94095 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9095 

Legislative Auditor 
P. O . Box 94397 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9397 

Personally cam e and appeared before the undersigned authorily 

(Title) ofL~ulstana Naval War Hemortal Com=l~ g ) who duly sworn, deposes and says, that the 

financial statem ents herewith given present fairly the financial po sition of 

(agency) atbecember 31, 2~  the results of operations for the year then ended in accordance with 

policies and practices established by the Division of Adm inistration or in accordance w ith G enerally 

Accepted Accounting Principles as prescribed by the G overnm ental Accounting Standards Board 

Sworn and subscribed before m e, this day of 

Signature of Agency O fficial NO TARY PUBLIC 

Prepared by: 

Title: 

Date 



STATE O F LO UISIANA 
Louisiana 
BA LA NC E 

Naval WRY M~mnvlm 
SH EET 

A S O FDecember 31. 2003 

Commlss~on (BTA) 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS: 

Cash lind cash eclulvalents (Note C1) 
Investments (Note C2) 
Receivables (net of allowance for doubtful sccounts)(Note U) 

from Other funds (Note Y) 
Due from federal governm ent 
Inve ntories 
Prepaym ents 
Notes receivable 
Other current easels 

Total CUrrent assets 
NONCURRENT ASSETS: 

Restricted assets (Note F): 
Cash 
Inve stments 
Rece ivables 

Notes receivable 
Capital assets (net of deprecistlon)(Note O) 
Lend 
Sul~In~s end ~.Drovemente 
Mschlnen/and equiPment 
Infrastructure 
Construdlon In proClm SS 

Ot her noncorrent assets 
Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

LIABILm E$ 
CURRENT  LIABILITIES: 

Accounts payable and accruals (Note V) 
Due fu other funds (Note Y) 
Due to federal governm ent 
Deferred re venues 
Amounts held In custody for others 
Ot her current Ilebllllles 
Current podion of long-term  liabilities: 
Contracts payable 
Reim bursem ent contre cle payable 
Combence ted absences payable (Note K) 
Capital lease obli~lations - (Note J) 
Notes payable 
Uabilitles payable from restricted assets (Note Z) 
Bond s payable 
Other Iong-ielm  liabilities 
Total current liabilities 

NON-CURRENT UABILITIES: 
Contracts payable 
Reim bursement contracts payable 
Compensated absences payable (Note K) 
Capital lease obligations (Note J) 
Notes payable 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets (Note Z) 
Bonds payable 
Other Iong-ferm liabilities 

Total Iong-tewn liabilities 
Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for: 
Capita( prolects 
Debt service 
Unemploym ent compenssUon 
Ot her specific Pum oses 

Unrestricled 
ToIsl net assets 

Total Ilebilitles end net assets 

The accom panying nctes are an Integral part of this financial statement. 
Slatem en! A 
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$ 

68.522 

15.029 

3.072.493 



STATE O F LO UISIANA 
Louisiana Naval War Memorial Commission (BTA) 
STATEM ENT O F REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHAN 
FO R THE YEAR ENDED December 31, 2003 

O PERATING REVENUES 
Sales of com m odities and services 
Assessm ents 
Use of m oney andproperty 
Licenses. permits, and fees 
Other 
Total operating revenues 

O PERATING EXPENSES 
Cost of sales and services 
Adm inistrative 
Depreciation 
Am odlzation 
Total operating expenses 

NON-OPERATING 
Stale appm pdattoss 
Inlergovemmental revenues (expenses) 
Taxes 
Usa of m oney and property 
Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assels 
Federal grants 
Interest expense 
Other 
Total non-operating revenues(exp enses) 

Income(loss) before contdbuttons and transfers 

Capital contributions 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total net assets - beginning as restated 

Total net assets - ending 

G ES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

The accon~o~nylng nol~  are an IntegrBI pl~rl of this financial statement. 
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$ 179.727 

~ . t , u u J 

576.810 

167,088 
639~780 

(t80,6t8) 

12,582 

(168,036) 

3,529,023 

$ 3,360,987 



STATE O F LO UISIA NA 
Louisiana Naval War Hemorial Commission (BTA) 
STATEM ENT O F ACTIVITIES 
FO R THE YEAR ENDED December 31, 2003 

O perating Capital 

Charges for G rants and G rants and 

Services Contributions Contributions 

8TA $ 917,500 $561,219 $ 168,581 

G eneral revenues: 

Taxes 

State appropriations 

Grants end contributions not restricted to specific program s 

Interest 

M iscellaneous 

Special Item s 

Transfers 

Total general revenues, special item s, and transfers 

Change In net assets 

Net assets - beginning 

Net assets - ending 

6O 

Net(Expense) 
Revenue and 

Changesln 
Net Assets 

12t582 ,, 

7,082 

19,664 

(168~036) - 
3,509,023 

$ 3,360,987 - 



 

STATE O F LO U ISIAN A 
LoutsJ.ana Naval War Hemorfal Commtss~ton (BTA) 
STATEM ENT O F CASH FLOW S 
FO R THE YEAR ENDED December 31p 2003 

Cash flow a from  operating activities 
Cash received from  custom ers 
Cash paym ents to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash paym ents to em ployees for services 
Paym ents in lieu of taxes 
Internal activity-paym ents to other funds 
Claim s paid to outsiders 
Other operating revenues(expenses) 

Net cash provided(used) by operating activities 

Cash flow s from non-capital financing activities 
State appropriations 
Proceeds from sale of bonds 
Principal paid on bonds 
Interest paid on bond m aturities 
Proceeds from  issuance of notes payable 
Pdnclpal paid on notes payable 
Interest paid on notes payable 
Operating grants received 
Other 
Transfers In 
Tra nsfers O ut 

Net cash provided(used) by non--capital 
financing activities 

Cash flow s from  capital and related financing 
Proceeds from sale of bonds 
Principal paid on bonds 
Interest paid on bond m aturities 
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable 
Principal paid on notes payable 
Interest paid on notes payable 
Acquisition/construction of capital assets 
Proceeds from  sale of capital assets 
Capital contributions 
O ther 

Net cash provided(used) by capital and 
related financing activities 

Cash flow s from  Investing activities 
Purchases of equipment: 
Proceeds from  sale of inveslm enl securities 
Interest and dividends earn ed on investm ent securities 

Net cash provided(used) by investing activities 

Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

The a~ panylng noles are an ~legral part of this statement. 

$ 507,368 
. 

' 

(424~783), 
(385.80q~ 

19;991 

76 

(237,174) 

159,996) 

12,582 

(12,641) 
(77,237) 

272,966 

$195,729 



STATE O F LO UISIANA 
Loulslana Naval War Memorial Commlssion 

STATEM ENT O F CASH FLOW S 
FO R THE YEAR ENDED December 31 , 2003 

(BTA) 

Reconciliation of operating income(loss) to net cashprovlded(used) by operating activities: 

Operating income(loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile opera ting income(loss) to net cash 

Provision for uncollectible accounts 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 
(Increase)decrease in accounts receivable, net 
(Increase)decrease in due from other funds 
(Increase)decre ase in prepayments 
(Increase)decrease In inventories 
(Increase)decre ase in other assets 
Increase(decrease) in acco unts payable and accruals 
Incraase(decrease) in accru ed payroll and related benefits 
Increase(decrease) in com pensated absences payable 
Increase(decrease) in due to other funds 
Increase(decrease) in deferred revenues 
Incre ase(decrease) in other liabilities 

Net cash provided(used) by operating activities 

Schedule of noncash Investing, capital, and financing activities: 

Borrowing under capital lease 

Contributions of fixed assets 

Purchases of equipm ent on account 

Asset trade-ins 

Other (specify) 

(Concluded) 

Total noncash investing, capital, and 
financing acUvltles: 

The accom panying no(as are an (rdegmf part of (h|s s(la(eme.(. 

Statem ent D 
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110,632 

$ (340,690) 

$ (237,174) 



Louisiana Naval War Memorial Cnmmlssion 

Notes to the Financial Statem ent 
A s of and for the year ended December 

INTRO DUCTIO N 

The LNWMC 
Louisiana Revised 

LNWMC 

(BTA) 

(BTA) was created by the Louisiana State Legislalure under 
Statute 25:1000-1003 . The following Is a brief description of 
(BTA) which includes the parlsh/parishes in which the (BTA) Is located: 

A. SUM M ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCO UNTING POLICIES 

the provisions of 
the operations of 

The accom panying financial statem ents of 
as to the transactions of the program s of 
statutes and adm inistrative regulations. 

LNWMC 
the LNWMC 

present Inform ation only 
authorized by Louisiana 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized and reported in the financial 
statem ents. Basis of accounting relates to the tim ing of the m easurem ents m ade, regardless of the 
m easurem ent focus applied. 

provisions end the regulations of the Division 
Accounting Policy as follows: 

are m aintained in accordance with applicable statutory 
of Adm inistration - Office of Stalewide Reporting and 

Revenues are recognized using the full accrual basis of accounting; therefore, revenues are recognized 
in the accounting period in which they are earned end becom e m easurable. 

Expenses ere recognized on the accrual basis; therefore, expenses, including salaries, are recognized 
in the period incurred, if m easurable. 

B. BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

The appropriations m ade for the operations of the various program s of the 
annual lapsing appropriations. 

LNWMC (BTA) are 

1. The budgetary process is an annual appropriation valid for one year. 
2. The agency is prohlbiled by statute from 'over expending the categories established In the budget. 
3. Budget revisions are granted by the Joint Legislative Budget Com m ittee, a com m ittee of the 

Louisiana Legislalure. Interim em ergency appropriations m ay be granted by the Intedm Em ergency 
Board. 

4. The budgetary inform ation included Jn the financial statem ents include the original appropriation plus 
subsequent am endm ents as follow s: 

1 
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Louislana Nava2 War Memorial Comm~saion (BTA) 
N otes to the Financial Statem ent 
A s of and for the year ended December 

O riginal approved budget 

Am endm ents: 

Final approved budget 

31, 2003 

DEPOSITS W ITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND INVESTM ENTS 
are deposited in the State Treasury, disregard Note C.) 

1. DEPO SITS W ITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

APPROPRIATIONS 

$ 574.000 

17~34Q 
19,564 
10.000 

$ 620,904 

For reporting purposes, deposits w ith financial institutions include savings, dem and depo sits, tim e 
deposits, and cedificates of deposit. Under state law the LNI,~C (BTA) may deposit funds 
within a fiscal agent bank selected and designated by the Inis dm Em ergency Board. Further, Ihe (BTA) 
m ay invest in tim e certificates of deposit of state banks organized under the laws of Louisiana

, national 
banks having their principal office in the state of Louisiana, savings accounts or shares of savings and loan 
associations and savings banks, and share accounts and share cedificate accounts of federally or state 
chartered credit unions. 

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, aJI highJy liquid investments (inclod ing resldcted assets 
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased) are considered to be cash equivalents. 

Depo sits in bank accounls are slated at cost, which approxim ates m arket. Under slale law Ihese deposits 
m ust be secured by federal deposit insura nce or the pledge of secudties owned by the fiscal agent bank. 

The market value of the pledged sec urifies plus the federal deposit insurance m ust at all tim es equal the 
amoun! on depo sit wilh the fiscal agent These pledged  securities are held in Ihe name of the pledging 
fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank in the form of safekeeping receipts held by the Stale 
Treasurer. 

Following the issuance of GASB Statem ent 3, deposits were classified into three categories of custodial 
credit risk depending on whelher they were insured or collateraltzed, and who held the collateral and how it 
was held, 

Cateaorv 1- Deposits that are covered by insurance (FDIC) or collateralized with securities that are held 
by the entity in the entity's name or registered in the entity's name. (separate disclosure no longer 
required) 
Category 2 - Deposits that are not insured but are collateralized with secudties that are  held by the 
financial ins(itulion's trust department or agent and are in the entily's name. (separate disclosure no 
longer required) 
Cate.qory3 - Deposits that are not covered by insurance and also are not collateralized. Not collateralized 
includes when lhe securities (collateral) are held by Ihe financial institution's trust depe dment or agent and 
they are not in the entity's name. (separate disclosure still required) 

GASB Statem ent 40 only requires category 3 deposits to he disclosed In the custodial credit risk 
section of Note C. If an entity has deposits exposed to custodial cre dit risk category 3, It should 
dis close the am ount of those balances, the fact that they are uninsured, and w hether the balances 
are either unconateralized, collatersllzed w ith securltis s held by the pledging financial Institution, 
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Louisiana Naval War Memorial ~ommlsslon 

Notes to the Financial Statem ent 
(BTA) 

As of and for the yearended December 3!, 2003 

or collaterallzed w ith securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust departm ent or 
agent, but not in the entlty's nam e. 

The deposits at December 3L 20 03 , consisted of the following 

Deposits in bank accounts per balance sheet $ 

Bank balences (category 3 only, If any) 
Identify am ounts reported as category  3 by 
the descriptions below : 
a. Uninsured and uncollalerellzed 
b. Uninsured and collaterallzed with securities 
held by the pledging institution 

c. Uninsured end collatere lized with secu rities held 
held by the pledging Institution's trust depsdm ent 
or agent, 

Total Category  3 bank balances 

Cedificates 
(~a.sh of Oeeosi( 

4,665 $ $ 

4,665 

Total bank balances (All categories Including 
catsgory 3 reported above) $ 203,974 $ 

$ 

$ 

Total 

$ 4 665 - 

~:~~E ". 

NOTE: The "Total Bank Balances" wilt not necessarily equal the "Deposits in Bank Account per Balance Sheet" 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 

The following is a breakdown by banking institution, program , account number, and amount of the 
balances shown above: 

Union Planters 

Union Planters 
Baton Route Area Foundatl 

Total 

General 

EndnwmAnt 

$ ]04.665 
321571 
66~738 

$ 203,974 

Cash in State Treasury and petty cash are notrequked to be reported in the note disclosure. However, to 
aid in reconciling am ounts repoded on the Balance Sheet to am ounts reported in this note, list below any 
cash in tre asury and petty cash that are included on the Balance Sheet. 

2. INVESTM ENTS 

The LNWMC 

Cash in State Treasury 
Petty cash 

state law (Note 

$ 
$ 1,800 

(BTA) does maintain investment accounts as 
legal provisions authorizing investments by (BTA)). 
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Louisiana Naval War Memorial Commission (BTA) 
N otes to the Financial Statem ent 
A s of and for the year ended December 31, 200

__ _ .
33 

Cateoorv 1 - Insured or registered in the entity's nam e, or securities held by the entity or its agent in the 
entitv's name. (separate disclosure no longer required) 

Cate.qory 2 - Uninsured and unregistered with securities held by the counterparty's trust departm ent or 
agent In the entity's name. (separate disclosure no longer required) 

Cate.qory 3 - Unsecured and unregistered 
department or agent 

with securities held by 
e. (separate disclosure 

cat 3, if Any: 
Held by 

Counterparty's 

Trust Dept or 
Agent Not In 
EnUty's Name 

Repurchase agreements $ 
U.S. Government securities 
Common & preferred stock 
Com me rcial paper 

Corporals bonds 

Other:. (identify) 
Certificates of deposit 

Held by 
Counterparty 

the counterparty, or by its trust 
stilt required} 

Total Reported 
Am ount - All 

Categories 

(including 
Category 3) 

$ $ 

- $ - $ I00,000 - $ 

Total Fair 
Value - All 
Categories 

(including 
Category 3) 

The institution does not invest in derivatives as part of its investm ent policy 
Accordingly, the exposure to risks from these Investments is as follows: 
credit dsk 

legal risk 

4 
66 



STATE O F LO U ISIA NA 
Louisiana Naval War Memorial Coma~Isslon 

Notes to the Financial Statem ent 
(BTA) 

A s of and for the year ended December 31, 2007. 

3. O ther Disclosures Required for Investm ents 

a. Investm ents in pools m anaged by other govem m enls or m ulual funds 

b. Securities underlying reverse repurchase agreem ents 

c. Unrealized investm ent losses 

d. Commitments as of (fiscal close), to resell securities under yield maintenance 
repurchase agreem ents: 
1. Carrying am ount and m arket value at June 30 of securities to be resold 

2. Descrtplion of the term s of Ihe agreem ent 

e. Losses during the year due to default by counterpadies to deposit or investm ent transactions 
__  

b. Significan! vJolalions of 
occurred during the year 

legal or conlrectual provisions for reverse repurchase agreem ents thai 

Credit risk related to the reverse repurchase agreem ents outstanding at balance sheet date, that is, 
lhe aggregate amount of reverse repurchase agreem ent obligations including accrued interesl 
com pare d to aggregate m arket value of lhe securllles underlying those agree m ents including 
interest 

Com m itm ents on 
agreem ents .

(fiscal close), to repurchase securities under yield maintenance 

k. M arket value on 

m  

(fiscal close), of the securities to be repurchased 
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Louisiana Naval War Memorial Commission (BTA) 

Notes to the Financial Statem ent 
A s of and for the year ended December 31

, ~nn ~ 

n. Am ounts recovered from prior-period losses which are not separately shown on the operating 

o. M ethods and significant assum ptions used In eslim ale fair value of investm ents, if fair value Is not 
based on quoted m arket prices 

p. Basis for determ ining which investm ents, if any, are reported at am ortized cost 

q. For Investm ents in exlernal inveslm enl pools lhal are nol SEC-registered, a brief descrtplton of any 
regulatory oversight for the pool 

r. W hether the fair value of your investm ent in the exlernal Investm ent pool is the sam e as the value of 
the pool shares 

s. Any involuntary participation in an extern al investm ent pool 

W hether you are unable to obtain inform ation from a poo l sponsor to determ ine the fair value of your 
investm ent in the pool, m ethods used and significant assum ptions m ade in determ ining that fair 
value and the reasons for having had to m ake such an estim ate 

u. Any Incom e from investm ents associated with one fund that is assigned to another fund 

v. Briefly describe the deposit and/or investm ent policies related to the custodial credit risk, 
concentration of credit risk, Interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk disclosed In this 
note. If no policy exists concerning the risks disclosed, please state that fact. 

w List, by amount and Issuer (not including U.S. government securities, mutual funds, and 
investment pools), investments In any one Issuer that represents 5% or more of total 
Investm ents 

x. List the fair value and term s of any debt Investm ents that re highly sensitive to changes In 
Interest rates due to the terms of the Investment (eg. coupon multipliers, reset dates, etc.) 

Disclose the credit risk of debt Investm ents by credit quality ratings as described by rating 
agencies as of the fiscal year end. All debt Investm ents regardless of type can be 
aggregated by credit quality rating (If any are unrated, disclose that amount). 

z, Disclose the Interest rate risk of debt Investm ents by listing the Investm ent type and the 
method that Is used to Identify and manage the Interest rate risk of those Investments (by 
one of the following 5 m ethods: a) segm ented tim e distribution, b) specific Identification, c) 
weighted average maturity, d) duration, or e) simulation model.) 
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STATE O F LO UISIA NA 
Louisiana Naval War Hemor

,lal Cnm~ission 
N otes to the Financial Statem ent 

(BTA) 

A s of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 

as. Disclose the U.S. dollar balances of any deposits or investm ents that are exposed to foreign 
currency risk (deposits or Investments denominated in foreign currencies). List by currency 
denom ination and Investm ent type, If applicable. 

D. CAPITAL ASSETS-INCLUDING CAPIT AL LEASE ASSETS 

The fixed assets used in th e Special Purpose Governm ent Engaged only In Business-Type Activities are 
Included on th e balance sheel of the entity and are capitalized al cost. Depreciation of all exhausfible 
fixed assets used by the entity are charged as an expense against operations. Accum ulated depreclafion 
Is reported on the balance sheet. Depreclalion for financial reporting purposes is com puted by the 
straight-line m elhod over the useful lives of the assets. 

Capltsl assets not being depreciated 
Land 
Non-depredeble land improvements 
Capitalized collections 
Conskuction In progress 

Yearend edDecember 

Balance  
12/31/02 

Pdor 
Pedod 

Adjusted 
Balance 

268,500 

Total capt~ asaets notbelng 
depredatad 268,5Q0 

Other capital assets 
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 79,22"6 
Less accurnutaled depredallon  5,q . "t ]-7 
Total fumtl~ e, fixtures, and equipmenl 20 t 909 

Buffd|egs and Improvements 
Less accumulated depredation 
Total I~ lldlngs and Im provements 

Depredsble land  improvements 
Less ace||mutated  deprectalion 
Total depredable lend Improvements 

Infrsstnlcture 
Less accumulated depredaUon  
Total Infra structure 

Capttal Asset Sum m ary: 
Capital assets not being depredatad 
Other capital assets, at cost 
Total cost of capital assets 

Lel~! acoum u~ tad dopredellon 

4,711,420 
1,830,421 

268,500 

11888,7-,~8 

3,170,4-08 

"" 

268,5()
_
0 

~ ShouM be used  only for those completed projects coming out of 
w(th transfers reported elsewhere In this packet. 

79,21D'6 
58.3 t-7 
20 .909 

31, 2003 

12,712 
6,086 

4,711,421) 
1,830,4ZI I04,54~ 
2,880,999 ~  

268,500 

5,059,146 
1.888.738 

12,717- 
12,717- 

~ (97.915~ 
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12/31/03 

~ 268,500 

- 4 

4,711,450 
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'

Loulslana Naval War Memorial Commission (BTA) 
N otes to the Financial Statem ent 
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 

E. INVENTO RIES 

The unit's inventories are valued at cost 
perpefiJal Inventories and are expensed when used 
show n as a prepaym ent. 

F. RESTRICTED A SSETS 

Restdcted assets in the LNWMC 

$ 68,522 
fiscal agent, 

(method of valuation). These ere 
NOTE: Do not include postage. This m ust be 

(BTA) at 12/31/03 
.(fiscal year end), reflected at 

section on Slatement A, consist of $ 68.522 In cash with 
receivables, and $ -0- Inveslment in 

in the non-current assets 
$ -0- in 

(identify the type investments held.) Slate the 
creation or an endowment to suPPort the memorial tn 

needed. 

G. LEAVE 

1, CO M PENSATED ABSENC ES 

The LNWMC (BTA) has the following policy on annual and sick leave: (Describe leave policy.) 

Em ployees earn and accum ulate annual and sick leave at various rates depend ing on lhetr years of 
service. The am ount of annual and sick leave that m ay be accum ulated by each em ployee Is unlim ited. 
Upon term ination, em ployees or their heirs are com pensated for up (o 300 hours of unused annual leave 
at the em ployee's hourly rate of pay at the tim e of term ination. Upon retirem ent, unused annual leave in 
excess of 300 hours plus unused sick leave is used to com pute retirem ent benefits. 

The cost of leave privileges, com puled in accordance with GASB Codification Section C60, is recognized 
as a current year expenditure in lhe fund when leave is aclually laken; It is reco gnized in Ihe enterprise 
funds when the leave is earned. The cost of leave privileges applicable to general govern m ent operations 
nol requiring currenl resoum es is recorded in long-term  obligations. 

H, RETIREM ENT SYSTEM 

Substanllally ell 
(System), 
em ployee 

of the employees of Ihe (BTA) are members oflhe Loulslana Deferred Compensatlo~ 

wstu,,, for the benefit of state em plo yees 
The System  is a statewlde public 

upon Investmeet. 

5% of the employee's 



 

|/.~| I- U I" LU U I~ I/~I~I/-~ 

POST RETIREM ENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS 

The LNWMC does not currently have any post retirement health care and llfe Insurance 
benefits. 
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Louisiana Naval War Memorial Commtasion (BTA) 
Notes to the Financial Statem ent 
A s of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 

J. LEA SES 

t. O PERATING LEASES 

The total paym ents for operating leases during 2003
. 

A schedule of paym ents for operating leases follows: 
am ounted to $ -0- 

FY2OtO- FY2015- 

Nature of lease FY2005 FY20O6 FY20O7 FY2O08 FY2009 2Q!4 2019 
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Total $ $ - 

2. " CAPITAL LEASES 

Capital leases {are not) recognized in the accompanying financial statements. The amounts to be 
accrued for capital leases and the disclosures required for capital and operating leases by National 
Council on Governmental Accounting (NCGA) Statement No. 5, as adopted by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, and FASB 13 should be re ported on the follow ing schedules: 

Capital leases are defined as an arrangement in which any one of the following conditions apply: (I) 
ownership transfers by the end of the lease, (2) the lease contains a bargain purchase option, (3) the 
lease term is 75% of the asset life or, (4) the discounted minimum lease payments ere 90% of the fair 
m arket value of the asset. 

a. Office space 

b. Equipm ent 
c. Land 

Total 

$ 

Gross Am ount of 
Leased Asset 

(Historical Costs) 

Rem aining 
interest to 
end of 

lease 

Rem aining 
principal to 
end of 
lease 

- (~- 

The following is a schedule by years of future m inim um lease paym ents under capital leases together with 
the present value of the net minimum lease payments 8s of (last day of your fiscal year) and a breakdown 
of yearly principal and interest: 
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Louisiana Naval War Memorial C sslon (BTA) 
Notes to the Financial Statem ent 
k s of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 

Year ending June 30: 

2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010-20t4 
2015-2019 

2020-2024 
Total m inim um lease paym ents 

Less am ounts representing executow  costs 
Net m inim um lease paym ents 

Less am ounts representing interest 
Present value of net m inim um lease paym ents 

$ 

$ -0- - 

Nature of lease 

s. Office space 

b. Equipm ent 
c. Land 

Total 

Gross Amount of 
Leased Asset 

fHIstodcal Costs) 

$ -0-" - 

$ 

Rem aining 
Interest to 
end of 

!ease 

Rem aining 
principal to 
end of 

lease 

$ -0- - $ -0- " 

The following is a schedule by years of future m inim um lease paym ents under capital leases together with th e 
present value of the net minimum lease paym ents as of (last day of your fiscal year) and e breakdown of yearly 
pdncipal and interest: 

Year ending June 30 

2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010-2014 
2015-2019 
2020-2024 
Total m inim um  lease paym ents 

Less am ounts representing executory costs 
Net m inim um  lease psym eels 

Less am ounts representing interest 
Present value of net m inim um  lease paym ents 
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Louisiana Naval War Hemortal CommlssJ.on (BTA) 
N otes to the Financial Statem ent 
A s of and for the year ended December 31,. 2003 

e, Office space 

b. Equipment 
c. Land 

Total 

$ 

Gross Am ount of 
Leased Asset 

(Hlstodcal Costst 

Rem aining 
Ineerest to 
end of 
lea~e 

$ 

Rem aining 
principal to 
end of 
lease 

The following Is a schedule by years of future m inim um lease paym ents under capital leases together with 
lhe present value of the net minimum lease paym ents as of (last day of your fiscal year) and a breakdown 
of yearly principal and interest: 

Year ending June 30: 

2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 

2009 
2010-2014 
20t5-2019 
2020-2024 
Tolal m inim um  lease paym ents 

Less am ounts representing executory costs 
Nel m inim um lease paym ents 

Less am ounts representing interest 
Present value of net m inim um lease paym ents 

LESSO R DIRECT FINANCING LEASES 

$ 

A lease is classified as a direct financing lease (f) when any one of Ihe four capitalization cdterla used Io 
define a capital lease for the lessee is met and (2) when both the following criteria are satisfied: 

~ Collectibllity of the m inim um lease paym ents is reasonably predictable. 
~ No im portant uncertainties surround the am ount of the unreim bursable costs yet to be incurred by 

the lessor under the lease. 
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Louisiana Naval War Memorial Commission (BTA) 
N otes to the Financial Statem ent 
A s of and for the year ended December 3[, 2003 

Provide a general description of the direct financing agreem ent, and com plete the chart below : 

M inim um lease Rem aining Interest 

a, O ffice space 

b, Equipm ent 

c. Land 

Date of I~ase paym ent receivable to end of lease 

$ $ $ 

Less am ounts representing executory costs 

M inim um lease paym ent receivable 

Less allowance for doubtful accounts 
Net m inim um lease paym ents receivable 

Less: Estim ated Residual Value of Leased Property 
Less unearned incom e 

Net investm ent In direct financing lease $ 

Rem aining Princi 
to end of leas_~ 

Minim um lease payments do not include contingent rentals which m ay be received as stipulated in the 
lease contracts. Contingent rental payments occur if for exam ple the use of the equipm ent, land, or 
building etc., exceeds a cedain level of activity each year. Contingent re ntals received for fiscal year 2004 
were $.__  for office space, $.__  for equipment, and $ for land. 

The following Is a sched 
lease as of 

ule by year of m inim um leases receivable for the rem aining fiscal years of the 
(the last day of your fiscal year): 

Yearending 

2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 

2009 
2010-2014 
20t5-2019 

2020-2024 

Total 

4. LESSOR - OPERATING LEASE 

$ 

13 
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Loulslana Naval War Memorial Commission (BTA) 
Notes to the Financial Statem ent 
A s of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 

Provide the cost and carrying amount, if different, of property on lease or held for lease organized by major 
class of property and the am ount of accum ulated depreciation as of 

a, Office space 
b. Equipm ent 
c. Land 
Total 

$ 

$ 

Cos__ t 

$ 

$ 

Accum ulated 
depreciation 

$ 

20 : 

Carrying 
am ount 

is a schedule by years of minimum future renters on non-cancelabfe operating lease(s) as of 
(the last day of your fiscal year); 

Year Ended 
June 30 Office Space Equipment 
2005 $ $ $ 
2006 
2007 
2008 

2009 

2010-2014 
2015-2019 

2020- 2024 

Land Other Total 
$ $ 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

Current year lease revenues received in fiscal year 

Contingent rentals received from 
for office space, $ 

K, LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

operating leases received 
for equipment, and $ 

totaled $ 

for your fiscal year was $ 
for land. 

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the entity for the year ended, 12/31/03. 

Bonds and notes payable: 
Notes payable 
Reim bursem ent contracts payable 
Bonds payable 
Total notes and bonds 

Other IlabUitles: 
Contracts payable 
Compensated absences payable 
Capital lease obligations 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets 
Claim s end litigation 
Other long-term  liabilities 
Total other liabilities 

Total long-term  liabilities 

Year ended December 31
, 2003 

Balance Balance Am ounts 

12131/02 Additions 

$ $ $ 

23,080 

23,080 

14 
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9,839 13,156 

t2/3[/03 

19,763" 

9,839 
. . 13,156 .. 19,763 .. 

$ 
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Louisiana Naval War Memorial Commission (BTA) 
Notes to the Financial Statem ent 
As of and for the year ende(' December 3[, 2003 

L. 

A detailed
.s~_mmaP/, by issues, of all debt outstanding at June 30, 2004, including outstanding interest 

of $ is shown on schedule 4. Schedule 5 is an am ortization schedule of the 
outstanding debt. (Send OSRAP a copy of the amortization schedule for any new debt issued.) 

LITIGATIO N 

The LNNHC 

Date of 
Action 

Totals 

(BTA) is a defendant in litigation seeking damages as follows 

Description of Litigation and 
Probable outcome (remote, Pdmary Damages 

Claim ed 

$ 

$ -0- $ 

]flsurence 

Coverage 

The [,N'~ C (BTA)'s legal advisor estimates that potential claims not covered by Insurance would 
affect the financial statement as follows (would not materially affect the financial statements or Is unable to 
estimate the effect on the financial statement): , 

2. Claims and litigation costs of $ -0- 
the accom panying financial statem ent. 

M . RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

were incurred in the curre nt year and are reflected in 

(FASB 57 requires disclosure of the description of the relationship, the transaction(s), the dollar amount of 
the transaction(s) and any amounts due to or from which result from related party transactions. List all 
related party transactions). None 

N. ACCOUNTING CHANGES 

O . IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIO NS 

15 
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Loo~alena Naval War Hemorial Comm~ssion (BTA) 
N otes to the Financial Statem ent 
As of and for the year ended December 31, ~003 

(List all in-kind contributions that are not Included in ;ae accompanying financial statements.) 

Total 

Q. COOPERATIVE ENDEAVORS 

Cosl/Estlmatsd Cosl/Fslr M arket 

- 0- 

LRS 33:9022 defines cooperative endeavors as any form of econom ic developm ent assistance between 
and am ong the state of Louisiana, its local govern m ental subdivisions, political corporations, public benefit 
corporations, the Untied States governm ent or its agencies, or any public or private association, 
corporalion, or individual. The lerm cooperative endeavor includes cooperative financing, cooperative 
developm ent, or any form of cooperative econom ic developm ent activity. The stale of Louisiana has 
entered Into cooperative endeavor agreem ents with certain enlities aim ed at developing lhe econom y of 
the state. 

Som e cooperative endeavor contracts are not coded with a docum ent type of "COP" on the 
Contract Financial Management Subsystem (CFMS), but are considered cooperative endeavors. 
Include these below w ith your cooperative endeavor contracts coded w ith a docum ent type of 
"COP". Exam ples of contracts that are considered cooperaUve endeavors, but are not coded w ith 
a docum ent type of "COP" Include contracts that fall under delegated authority, Facility Planning 
and Control "CEA" contracts, certain federal governm ent contracts, contracts that legislative 
auditors m ay have designated as such within your agency, work Incum bent program s, etc. In prior 
years, this Inform ation w as requested as supplem ental docum entation after the AFRs w ere 
subm itted, usually in O ctober or Novem ber. 

The liability outstanding as of June 30, 2004, by funding source, is as follow s 

16 
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Louisiana Naval 'War Hemo~lal Co~m~eslou (BTA) 
Notes to the Financial Statem ent 
A s of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 

Fundtna Source 
State G eneral Fund 
Self-generated revenue 
Statutorily dedicated revenue 
G eneral obligation bonds 
Federal funds 
Interagency transfers 
O ther 

Balance 
June 30~ 2004 

NOTE: Am ounts in excess of contract lim its cannot be used to reduce the outstanding contract 
balance at June 30, 2004 For exam ple, if a contract specifies a percentage of usage for each 
month (25%) and usage exceeds that percentage (75%), you cannot claim actual usage that 
exceeds co ntract requirements (50%). 

NO TE: In order to com pute your ending balances by funding source, you should begin with your 
balances at June 30, 2003. These am ounts will be increased by am ounts for new  contracts 
and am endm ents and decreased for paym ents as well as for liquidations. 

R. GOVERNMENT-MANDATED NONEXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS (GRANTS) 

The following 
2003-2004: 

CFDA 
Num ber 

nenexchange transactions (grants) were received during fiscal year 

Pm qram Name 

Total government-mandated nonexchenge transactions (grants) 

State Match 
Percentaae 

Total Am ount 

of Grant 

S. VIOLATIONS OF FINANCE-RELATED LEGAL OR CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS 

At June 30, 20_ _ , the (BTA) was nol in compliance with the. provisions of 
Bond Reserve Covenant that requires 

T. SHO RT~ ERM DEBT 

The 

(BTA)issues short-term notes for the following 

(BTA) did 
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Louisiana Naval War Memorial Commission 

Notes to the Financial Statem ent 
A s of and for the year ended December 31. 

(BTA) 

2003 

Short-term  debt activity for the year ended June 30, 20 , was as follows 

List the type of S-T debt 
te.g., tax anticipation notes) 

The 
purposes: 

Beginning 
Balance issued Redeem ed 

$ $ $ 

Ending 
Balance 

(BTA) uses e revolving line of credit for the following 

Short-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 20 _ , was as follows: 

$ 

Beginning 
Balance  

U. DISAGGREGATION OF RECEIVABLE BALANCES 

Receivables at June 30, 20 , were as follows: 

Ad ivi~/ 

Overnight camo~n~ 

Gross receivables 
Less allowance for 

uncollectible accounts 
Receivables, net 

Cuslom er 
Receivables Taxes 

$ 3.685 $ 

Receivables 
from other 

Governm ents 

Amounls not scheduled 
for co llection during the 

subsequent year $ $ __  
$ 

V. DISAG G REG ATION OF PAYABLE BALANCES 

Payables at June 30, 2004, were as follows 

Aclivi~ 
Trade 
Payroll taxes 

Vendors 

q&7 

Salaries 

and 

Benefils 

$ 

Accrued 

Interest 

$ $ 

Giber 
Receivables 

$ 

Total payables $ 15. 029 - $~  $ ~  $ 

i 

18 
8O 

Ending 
Balance 

Total 
Receivables 

Other 

Payables 

Total 
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Louisiana Naval War Memorial CoRunlsslon (BTA) 
Notes to the Financial Statem ent 
A s of and for the year ended "December 31, 2003 

W . SUBSEQ UENT EVENTS 

[Disclose any marshal event(s) affecting the (BTA) occurring between the close of the fiscal period and 
issuance of the financial statement.1 

X. SEG M ENT INFORM ATION 

G overnm ents that report enterprise funds or that use enterprise fund accounting and reporting standards 
to report their activities are required to present segment information for those activities in the notes to the 
financial statements. For the purposes of this disclosure, a segment is an identifiable activity (or group of 
activities), reported as or within an enterprise fund or an other stand-alone entity that has one or more 
bonds or other debt instruments outstanding, with a revenue stream pledged in support of that debt. In 
addition, the activity's revenues, expenses, gains and losses, assets, and liabilities are required to be 
accounted for separately. This requirement for separate acc ounting applies if im po sed by an extern al 
party, such as accounting and repoding requirem ents set forth in bond indentures. Disclosure 
require m ents for each segment should be met by identifying the types of goods and services pro vided and 
by pre senting condensed financial statem ents in the notes, including the elem ents in A through C below 
(GASB 34, paragraph 122, as modified by GASB 37, paragraph 17.) 

Type of goods or services provided by the Memorlal/Nautlcal Center 

A. Condensed Balance Sheet: 
(1) Total assets - distinguishing between current assets, capital assets, and other assets. Amounts 

receivable from other funds or BTA's should be repo rted separately. 
(2) Total liabilities - distinguishing between current and long-term amounts. Amounts payable to 

other funds or BTA's should be re ported separa tely. 
(3) Total net assets - distinguishing among restricted; unrestricted; and amounts invested in capital 

assets, net of related debt. 

Condensed Balance Sheet: 

Current assets 

Due from olher funds 

Ceplta! assets 

Other assets 

Current liabilities 

Due to other funds 

Long-term liabilities 
Restricied net assets 

Unrestricted net assets 

$ 255,888 $ 

3.072.&q~ 
68,522 

16,153 

,763 

Invested ln capHalassets, netofrelated 
debt 3,072,493 

B. Condensed statem ent of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets: 
(1 
(2 
(3 
(4 

Operating revenues (by major source). 
Operating expenses. Depreciation (including any amortization) should be Identified separately. 
Operaling income (loss). 
Nonoperating revenues (expenses) - with separate reporting of major revenues and expenses. 

19 
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Louisiana Naval War Memorial Commission 
N otes to the Financial Statem ent 
A s of and for the year ended December 

(BTA) 

3J, 2003 

(5) Capital contributions and additions to permanent and term endowments 
(6) Special and extraordinary items. 
(7) Transfers 
(8) Change in net assets. 
(9) Beginning net assets. 
(10) Ending netassets. 

Condensed Statem ent of Revenues. Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets: 

Operating revenues $ 
Operating expenses 
Depredation end sm odization 

Operating income (loss) 
Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
Capital contributions/additions to 

perm armnt sod term endowments 
Special and extraordinary item s 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Change in net assets 
Beginning net assets 
Ending net assets 

12,582 

C. Condensed statem ent of cash flows: 
(1) Net cash provided (used) by: 

(a) Operating activities 
(b) Noncapita! financing actlvtfies 
(c) Capital and related financing activities 
(d) Investing activities 

(2) 
(3) 

Beginning cash and cash equivalent balances 
Ending cash and cash equivalent balances 

Condensed Statem ent of Cash Flows: 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 
Net cash provided (used) by nonca pitsl 

financing activities 
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related 

financing activities 
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 
Beginning cash and cash equivalent balances 
Ending cash and cash equivalent balances 

20 
82 

$ 

Seament #1 

(237,174) 

159,996 

12,582 
(12,641) 
272,966 
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Lou~siana Naval War 8oton (BTA) 
N otes to the Financial Statem ent 
A s of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 

Y. DUE TO/DUE FRO M AND TRANSFERS 

1. List by fund type the am ounts due from  other funds detailed by individual fund at your fiscal year end: 

Total due from other funds $ 

2. List by fund type the am ounts due to other funds detailed by individual fund at fiscal year end: 

Type of Fund Name of Fund Amount 
$ 

Tolal due to other funds $ 

List by fund type all transfers from other funds for the fiscal year: 

Total transfers from other funds 

4. List by fund type all transfers to other funds for the fiscal year: 

$ 

Type of Fund Name of Fund Am ount 

Total transfer s Io other  funds 

Z. LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Liabilities payable from restricted 
reflecled at $. 

in 
In accounts payable, $. 

assets in the 
Ihe current liabilities 

Liabilities payable from restricted assets 
reflecled at $ in the 
$ in accounts payable, $ 

In 

in the 

(BTA) at 

$ 

$ 

section on Sletem ent A, 
notes payable, and 

.(BTA) at 
iabilities section on non-current 

AA. PRIOR-YEAR RESTATEM ENT OF NET ASSETS 

In notes payable 

_(fiscal 
consist of $ 
$ 

year end), 

(fiscal year end), 
Statem ent A, consist of 
and $ in 

The following adjustments were made to restate beginning net assets for June 30, 20.___ 

21 
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Louisiana Naval War Commission (BTA) 
N otes to the Financial Statem ent 
A s of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 

Fund balance 
July 1. 2003, 

previously reported 
Adjustm ants 

+ or (-) 

Each ad~ustm en! musl be explained tn delell on a separate sheeL 

B eginning net 
assets. July 1, 2003, 

A s restated 

(NOTE: Net Assets at July 1, 20 _, previously reported, must correspond to Net Assets at June 30, 
20 . per the informaUon received from OsRAP.) 

22 
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STATE O F LO UISIANA 
Louisiana Naval War Hemnrial 

SC H ED U LE O F PER DIEM  PAID TO BO AR D 
For[he Year Ended December 31, 2003 

(FIscal Cloae) 

~n (BTA) 

SC H EDU LE I 
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STATE O F LO UISIANA 
Louisiana Naval War Heqlortal Commission (BTA) 

SCH EDU LE O F STATE FUNDING 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003 

(Fiscal Close) 

Total 

SC H EDULE 2 

$ 



Issue 
Date of 
Issue 

STATE O F LO UISIANA L
ouisiana Ravel War Hemorial Commission (BTA) 

SCHEDULE O F REIM BURSEM ENT CO NTRACTS PAYABLE 
December 31, 2003 

(Fiscal Gloss) 

Principal 
O riginal O utstanding Redeem ed 
Issue 6130/PY (Issued) 

Principal 
O utstanding 
6/30/CY 

nterest 
Rates 

Interest 
O utstanding 
6130/CY 

Total 

$ $ $  $ 

*Send copies of new amortization schedules 

SCHEDULE 3-A 
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Date of 
Issue Issue 

SCHEDULE O F NOTES PAYABLE 
December 31. 2003 

(Fiscal close) 

Principal 
O riginal Outstanding Redeem ed 
Issue 6/30/PY (Issued) 

Principal 
Outslanding 
6/30/CY 

Total 

$ $ $ 

*Send copies of new am ortization schedules 

SCHEDULE 3-B 
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Issue 
Date of 
Issue 

STATE O F LO UISIANA 
Lou:l.stana Naval War Memorial C0mmts 

SCH EDU LE O F BO NDS PA YA BLE 
D ecember 31, 2003 

(Fiscal close) 

Principal 
Original O utstanding Redeem ed 
Issue 6/30/PY (Issued) 

slon (BTA) 

Principal 
O utstanding 
6/30/CY 

Interest 
Rates 

O utstanding 
6~ O~ Y 

$ $ $ $ 

*Send copies of new am ortization schedules 

SCHEDULE 3-C 
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FiscalYear 
Endina: 

2005 

2006 

2007 
2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 
2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

2021 

2022 

2O23 

2024 

2025 

2026 

2027 

2028 

2029 

STATE O F LO UISIANA 
Louisiana Naval War Memorial Commission (BTA) 

SCHEDULE OF REIM BURSEM ENT CONTRACTS PAYABLE AM ORTIZATION 
For The Year EndedDecember 31, 2003 

$ 

Tolal $ 

(Fiscal Close) 

$ 

$ 

SCHEDULE 4-A 



 

STATE O F LO UISIAN A 
Louisiana Naval War H~'mnT4~ 

SCHEDULE O F CAPITAL LEASE AM O 
For The Year Ended December - 

Fiscal Year 
Ending; 

2005 $ 

2006 

2007 

2006 

2009 

2010-2014 

2015-2019 

2020-2024 

2025-2029 

31, 2003 

Total $ -- $ 

SCHEDULE 4-B 
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STATE O F LO UISIANA 
Louisiana Naval War Memoriai Commission 

SCHEDULE O F NOTES PAYABLE AM O RTIZATIO N 
For The Year Ended December 31, 2003 

Fiscal Year 
Ending. 

2005 $ 

2006 

2007 

2008. 

2009 

2010-2014 

2015-2019 

2020-2024 

2025~ 029 

SCHEDULE 4-C 
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(BTA) 



Fiscal Year 
Endinq~ 

2005 
20o6 

20O7 

2008 

2009 
2010 

2011 

2012 
2013 

2014 
2015 
2016 

2017 

2018 
2019 

2020 

2021 

2022 

2023 

2024 

2025 

2026 

2027 

2028 

2029 

To~l $ 

STATE O F LO UISIANA 
Louisiana -Naval War Hemortal Commission (]~TA) 

SC HEDULE O F BO NDS PAYABLE AM O RTIZATIO N 
For The Year Ended December 31, 2003 

$ 

$ 

SCHEDULE 4-D 
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STATE O F LO UISIANA 

Louisiana Naval War Memorial Commission BTA) 

SCHEDULE O F CURRENT YEAR REVENUE AND EXPENSES 

BUDG ETARY CO M PARISO N O F CURRENT APPRO PRIATIO N 

NO N-G AAP BASIS 
December 31, 2003 

Reconciling item s: 

Cash carryover 

Depreciation 

Payroll accrual 

Compensated absences adjustment 
Capital outlay 

Change in inventory  

Bad debts expense 

Prepaid expenses 

Principal paym ent 

Loan Pdncipal Repaym enls included in Revenue 

Loan Disbursem ents included in Expenses 

Accounts receivable adjustment 
Accounts payable/estimated liabilities adjustment 

O ther 

Change in Net Assets 

Conduded 

Schedule 5 
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STATE O F LO UISIANA 

Louisiana Naval War Memorial C 

CO M PARISO N FIG URES 

(BTA) 

To assist OSRAP in determ ining the reason for the change in financial position for the state and reason 
for lhe changes in the budget, please com plete the schedule below . If the change is greater than tO% , 

explain the reason for the change. 

1) Revenues 

Expenses 

2) Capital assets 

Longqerm  debt 

Net Assets 

$ 736,882 

Explanation for change: 

Revenues $ 

Expenditures 

Explanation ofchenge: 

Revenues 

Expend~ures 

Exp~nat~n of change 

$ 824~792 $ (87,9X0) $ 

917,500 920,009 

3,072,493 3,170,408 

Percentage 
Change 

11% 

(2.509) 1Z  

97.91~ 3Z 

. 19.763 P3:oRn 3
.
317 15% 

3~360p987 3.529.023 (lfiR,n~ ) 5% 

2004 Original 
Budget 

643,760 

2004 Final 
Budget 

$ 656,360 . $ 12.60~ $ 

574,000 620~904 46.90~ 

Percentage 
Change 

2Z 

9% 

Additionally, 
the year. 

geted. 

unanticipated repairs and renovations were made during 

SCHEDULE 15 

95 


